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no par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued A A 0A A A 0A Common stock, no par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized; 16,137,646 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2024
and 16,125,662 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2023 A A 297,591A A A 295,106A Retained earnings A A 306,804A A A 277,526A Accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss)
A A (53,244)A A (50,487) Total shareholdersa€™ equity A A551,151A A A 522,145A Total liabilities and shareholdersa€™ equity A $5,602,388A A $5,353,224A A See accompanying notes to
consolidated financial statements, A 1 Table of Contents A A A MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited) A A A A Three Months A A
Three Months A A Six Months AA.S!X.MOI}':}}SAAAAAAA Ended A A Ended A A Ended AAAAAEAnded A (Dollars in thousands except per share amounts) A June 30,2024 A A June 30, 2023 A A June

30,2024 AA June 30,2023 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Interestincome AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Loans, lncludlng fees A $72,819A A $62,006A A $144,089A A $119,159A
Securities, taxable A A 2, 656A A A 2, 207A A As, 101A AA 4 338A Securities, tax- exempt A A 968A AA 904A A A 1,945A A A 1,780A Interest-earning deposits

AA 43 572A A A 45 551A A A 89,634A A A 93,335 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Noninterestincome AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Service charges on deposit and sweep accounts
AA1,692AAA 1,064A A A 3,224A A A 2,041A Mortgage banking income A A 3,023A A A 1,835A A A 5,365A A A 3,050A Credit and debit card income

AA 2,266A AA 2,426A AA 4,387A AA 4,485A Interest rate swap fees AA 766A A A 748A A A 2,104A A A 1,785A Payroll services income AA686AAAS572AAA1,582AAA1,317A Earnings
on bank owned life insurance A A 437A A A 402A A A 1,609A A A 802A Other income A A 811A AA598A AA2,277A AA 1,117A Total noninterest income
AA9,681AAA7,645AAA20548AAA 14, 597AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Noninterest expense AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Salaries and benefits

AA17,913AAA 16,461A A A 36,150A A A 33,143A Occupancy A A 2,220A A A 2,098A A A 4,509A A A 4,387A Furniture and equipment depreciation, rent and maintenance

AA923AAA878AAA1,852A A A 1,700A Data processing costs AA3,415AAA2,881AAAG6,704A A A 6,043A Charitable foundation contributions A A 4A A A2A A A 707A A A 12A Other

expense A A 5,262A A A 5,509A A A 9,758A A A 11,144A Total noninterest expense A A 29,737A A A 27,829A A A 59,680A A A 56,429AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Income before federal

income tax expense A A 23,516A A A 25,367A A A 50,502A A A 51, 503AAAAAAAAAAAAAA AAAA Federal income tax expense

eammgs per share A $1.17A A $1 27A A $2 50A A $2.58A Diluted earnings per share A $1.17A A $1. 27A A $2.50A A $2 58A A A AAAAA A AAAAAAAAA Average basic shares
outstanding A A 16,122,813A A A 16,003,372A A A 16,120, 836AAA 15,999,775A Average diluted shares outstanding AA16,122,813A A A 16,003,372A A A 16,120,836A A A 15,999,775A A
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. A 2 Table of Contents A’ A MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) (Unaudited) A A A A Three Months AA Three Months A A Six Months A A Six Months AAA Ended AA Ended AA Ended A A Ended A (Dollars in thousands) A June 30,

A $18,786A A $20 357A A $40 348A A $41 332AAAA A AAAAAAAAAAAAA Other comprehensive income (loss): AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Unrealized holdlng gains (losses) on

securities available for sale A A (342)A A (6, 645)A A @3, 491)A A 4,841A Tax effect of unreallged l}oldrng gains (]oeses) on securities available for sale AA 73A A A 1,395A A A 734A A A (1,017)
Other comprehenswe income (loss) net of tax A A (269)A A (5,250)A A (2,757)AA3,824AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Comprehenswe income (loss)
A $18,517A A $15,107A A $37,591A A $45,156A A See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. A 3 Table of Contents A A MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS&€™ EQUITY (Unaudited) AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Accumulated AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA OtherAA

Total A A A Preferl_‘ed A A Common A A Retained A A Comprehensive AA Shareholdersa€™ A (Dollars in thousands except per share amounts) A Stock A A AStockAAAAA EAarmAngsAAAAA Income

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA (269)A A (269)A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANA Balances, June 30, 2024 A $0A A $297,591A A $306,804A A $(53,244)A $551, 151A A See accompanying
notes to consolidated financial statements. AAA4AT§1bAle”0§ Contents A MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS&€™ EQUITY

(Continued) (Unaudlted) AAA AAAAAAAAAAAAAA Accumulated AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA OtherAA Total AAA Preferred AA Common A A Retained A A
Comprehensive A A Shareholdersa€™ A (Dollars in thousands except per share amounts) A Stock A A Stock AA Earnmgs A A Income (Loss) A A Equity

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA (2, 757)AA (2,757) AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Balances, June 30, 2024 A $0A A $297,591A A $306,804A A $(53,244)A $551 151A AA See
accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements, A 5 Table of Contents AAA MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN

SHAREHOLDERSA€™ EQUITY (Contmued) (Unaudited) A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAA Accumulated AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA OtherAA Total AAA Preferred AA Common
A A Retained AA Comprehensive A A Shareholdersa€™ A (Dollars in thousands except per share amounts) A Stock A A Stock AA Earnings A A Income (Loss) AA Equity

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA (5,250)A A (5, 250)AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Balances, June 30, 2023 A $0A A $292,906A A $247,313A A $(61,517)A $478, 702A See
accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. A 6 5 Table of Cf)l‘t‘?nPSA. MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN

SHAREHOLDERS&€™ EQUITY (Contmued) (Unaudited) A AA AAAAAAAAAAAAAA Accumulated AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA OtherAA Total AAA Preferred AA Common
A A Retained AA Comprehensive A A Shareholdersa€™ A (Dollars in thousands except per share amounts) A Stock A A Stock AA Earnings A A Income (Loss) A A Equity

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA 3, 824A A A 3,824AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Balances, June 30, 2023 A $0A A $292,906A A $247,313A A $(61,517)A $478 702A A See
accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. A 7 Table of Contents AAA A MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

A A AA Six Months AA Six Months AAA Ended AA Ended A (Dollars in thousands) A June 30, 2024A A June 30, 2023AAAAAAAA A A Cash flows from operating activities
AAAAAAAA Netincome A $40,348A A $41,332A Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities AAAA AA A A Depreciation and amortization

A A 5,480A A A 5,930A Provision for credit losses A A 4,800A A A 2,600A Stock-based compensation expense A A 1,633A A A 1,681A Stock grants to directors for retainer fees

AA423AA A 317A Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale A A 147,849A A A 70,280A Origination of mortgage loans held for sale A A (146,731)A A (76,088) Net gain from sales of
mortgage loans held for sale A A (4,637)A A (2,569) Net gain from sales and valuation write-downs of foreclosed assets A A (290)A A 0A Net gain from sale and write-down of former bank
premlses AA (78)A A 0A Net loss from sales and write- downs of flxed assets A A OA A A 377A ]::armngs on bank owned hfe insurance AA (1, 609)A A (802) Net (gain) loss on 1nstruments

AAAA A A A A Loan originations and payments, netA A (133, 793)A A (135,410) Purchases of securities available for sale A A (57,592)A A (11,641) Proceeds from maturities, calls and
repayments of securities available for sale A A 23,185A A A 10,198A Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets A A 290A A A 0A Proceeds from sales of fomer bank premises A A 278A A A 0A
Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank stock A A 0A A A (3,792) Proceeds from bank owned life insurance death benefits claim A A 1,357A A A 0A Net purchases of premises and equipment and
lease activity A A (2,330)A A (4,680) Net cash for investing activities A A (168,605)A A (145,325) A See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. A 8 Table of Contents A

MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) (Unaudited) A A AA Six Months AA Six Months AAA Ended AA Ended A (Dollars in
(decrease) in all other deposits AA 173 754A A A (183,553) Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase A A (7,836)A A 25, 117A Maturltles of Federal Home Loan
Bank advanceSAA (50,827)A A (40,353) Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances A A 10,000A A A 200,000A Employee stock purchase plan AA24AAA 23A ADrvrdend reinvestment
plan A A 405A A A 449A Payment of cash dividends to common shareholders A A (11,070)A A (10,332) Net cash from flnancmg activities A A 186,352A AA 218,882AAAAAAAAAA Net
change in cash and cash equivalents A A 67,096A A A 111,024A Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period A A 130,533A A A 96,772A Cash and cash equivalents at end of period



AA OA A A 600A Transfers from loans to foreclosed assets A A 0AAAG61A A See accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements. A A 9 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK
CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 1.A A A A SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES A Basis of Presentation: The unaudited financial
statements for the six months ended June 30, 2024 include the consolidated results of operations of Mercantile Bank Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. These subsidiaries include
Mercantile Community Partners, LLC ("MCP") and Mercantile Bank (&€ceour banka€) and its subsidiaries, includingA Mercantile Insurance Center, Inc.A These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions for Form 10-Q and Item 303(b) of Regulation S-K and do not include all disclosures required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (&4€0eGAAP&€) for a complete presentation of our financial condition and results of operations. In the opinion of management, the information
reflects all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) which are necessary in order to make the financial statements not misleading and for a fair presentation of the results
of operations for such periods. The results for the period ended June 30, 2024 should not be considered as indicative of results for a full year. For further information, refer to the consolidated
financial statements and footnotes included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. A We have five separate business trusts that were formed to issue trust
preferred securities. Subordinated debentures were issued to the trusts in return for the proceeds raised from the issuance of the trust preferred securities. The trusts are not consolidated, but
instead we report the subordinated debentures issued to the trusts as a liability. A Earnings Per Share: Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares
and participating securities outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share include the dilutive effect of additional potential common shares issuable under our stock-based
compensation plans and are determined using the treasury stock method. Our unvested restricted shares, which contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends whether paid or accrued (i.e.,
participating securities), are included in the number of shares outstanding for both basic and diluted earnings per share calculations. In the event of a net loss, our unvested restricted shares
are excluded from the calculation of both basic and diluted earnings per share. A Approximately 303,000 unvested restricted shares were included in determining both basic and diluted
earnings per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024.A Approximately 350,000 unvested restricted shares were included in determining both basic and diluted earnings per
share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023. Stock options for approximately 5,000 shares of common stock were antidilutive and not included in determining diluted earnings per
share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023. A (Continued) A 10 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited) A A 1.A A A A SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) A Debt Securities: Debt securities classified as held to maturity are carried at amortized cost when
management has the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Debt securities available for sale consist of bonds which might be sold prior to maturity due to a number of factors,
including changes in interest rates, prepayment risks, yield, availability of alternative investments or liquidity needs. Debt securities classified as available for sale are reported at their fair
value. For available for sale debt securities in an unrealized loss position, we first assess whether we intend to sell, or if it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security
before recovery of the amortized cost basis. If either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met, the debt securityd€™s amortized cost basis is written down to fair value
through income with the establishment of an allowance. For debt securities available for sale that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, we evaluate whether any decline in fair value is due
to credit loss factors. In making this assessment, we consider any changes to the rating of the security by a rating agency and adverse conditions specifically related to the issuer of the security,
among other factors. If this assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows expected to be collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost basis of
the security. If the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an allowance is recorded for the credit loss, limited by
the amount that the fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. Any impairment that has not been recorded through an allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). A
Changes in the allowance are recorded as provisions for (or reversals of) credit losses. Losses are charged against the allowance when the collectability of an available for sale debt security is
confirmed or when either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met. At June 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, there was no allowance related to the available for sale debt
securities portfolio. A Interest income includes amortization of purchase premiums and accretion of discounts. Premiums on debt securities are amortized to the initial call date, if applicable, or
to the maturity date, on the level-yield method. Discounts on debt securities are accreted to the maturity date on the level-yield method. Premiums and discounts on mortgage-backed securities
are amortized or accreted based on anticipated prepayments on the level-yield method. Gains and losses on sales are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific identification
method. A Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis (4€ceFHLBIA€) stock is carried at cost, classified as a restricted security, and periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate
recovery of par value. A Loans: Loans that we have the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are reported at the principal balance outstanding, net of
deferred loan fees and costs. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized in interest
income using the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments. Net unamortized deferred loan costs amounted to $2.6A million and $2.4A million at June 30, 2024, and December 31,
2023, respectively. A Interest income on commercial loans and mortgage loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-secured and in process of
collection. Consumer and credit card loans are typically charged off no later than when they are 120 days past due. Past due status is based on the contractual terms of the loan. In all cases,
loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier date if collection of principal and interest is considered doubtful. A Accrued interest is included in other assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income. Interest received on such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or
cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future
payments are reasonably assured. A (Continued) A 11 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A

1.A A A A SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) A Loans Held for Sale: Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of
aggregate cost or fair value, as determined by outstanding commitments from investors. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recorded as a valuation allowance and charged to earnings. As of June
30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, we determined that the fair value of our mortgage loans held for sale totaled $22.5A million and $19.0A million, respectively. A Mortgage loans held for sale
are generally sold with servicing rights retained. Gains and losses on sales of mortgage loans are based on the difference between the selling price, which includes a gain or loss on the interest
rate commitment coverage position, and the carrying value of the related loan sold, which is reduced by the cost allocated to the servicing right. Market rate risk on interest rate commitments
with borrowers prior to loan closing is mitigated through forward commitments referred to as to-be-announced mortgage-backed securities. These mortgage banking activities are not
designated as hedges and are carried at fair value. The net gain or loss on mortgage banking derivatives, which is generally nominal in dollar amount, is included in the gain on sale of loans and
recorded as part of mortgage banking income. A Allowance for Credit Losses (a€ceallowancea€):A The allowance is a valuation account that is deducted from the loansa€™ amortized cost basis
to present the net amount expected to be collected on the loans. The allowance is increased by a provisionA for credit losses and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries of amounts
previously charged-off. Loans are charged-off against the allowance when we believe the uncollectability of a loan balance is confirmed.A The allowance is measured on a collective pool basis
when similar risk characteristics exist and on an individual basis when a loan exhibits unique risk characteristic which differentiate the loan from other loans within the loan segments. Loan
segments are further discussed in Note 3 - Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses. A The 4€ceremaining life methodologya€ is utilized for substantially all loan pools. This non-discounted cash
flow approach projects an estimated future amortized cost basis based on current loan balance and repayment terms. Our historical loss rate is then applied to future loan balances at the
instrument level based on remaining contractual life adjusted for amortization, prepayment and default to develop a baseline lifetime loss. The baseline lifetime loss is adjusted for changes in
macroeconomic conditions over the reasonable and supportable forecast and reversion periods via a series of macroeconomic forecast inputs, such as gross domestic product, unemployment
rates, interest rates, credit spreads, stock market volatility and property price indices, to quantify the impact of current and forecasted economic conditions on expected loan performance. A
Reasonable and supportable economic forecasts have to be incorporated in determining expected credit losses. The forecast period represents the time frame from the current period end
through the point in time that we can reasonably forecast and support entity and environmental factors that are expected to impact the performance of our loan portfolio. Ideally, the economic
forecast period would encompass the contractual terms of all loansi% however, the ability to produce a forecast that is considered reasonable and supportable becomes more difficult or may not
be possible in later periods. The contractual term generally excludes potential extensions, renewals and modifications. A Subsequent to the end of the forecast period, we revert to historical
loan data based on an ongoing evaluation of each economic forecast in relation to then current economic conditions as well as any developing loan loss activity and resulting historical data. We
are not required to develop and use our own economic forecast model, and elect to utilize economic forecasts from third-party providers that analyze and develop forecasts of the economy for
the entire United States at least quarterly. A During each reporting period, we also consider the need to adjust the historical loss rates as determined to reflect the extent to which we expect
current conditions and reasonable and supportable economic forecasts to differ from the conditions that existed for the period over which the historical loss information was determined. These
qualitative adjustments may increase or decrease our estimate of expected future credit losses. A (Continued) A 12 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 1.A A A A SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) A Our qualitative factors include: o Changes in lending policies
and procedures o Changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio and in the terms of loans o Changes in the experience, ability and depth of lending management and other relevant staff
o Changes in the volume and severity of past due loans, nonaccrual loans and adversely classified loans o Changes in the quality of the loan review program o Changes in the value of underlying
collateral dependent loans o Existence and effect of any concentrations of credit and any changes in such o Effect of other factors such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements o
Local or regional conditions that depart from the conditions and forecasts for the entire country The estimation of future credit losses should reflect consideration of all significant factors that
affect the collectability of the loan portfolio at each evaluation date. While our methodology considers both the historical loss rates as well as the traditional qualitative factors, there may be
instances or situations where additional qualitative factors need to be considered. Effective January 1, 2022, we established a historical loss information factor to address the relatively low level
of loan losses during the look-back period. A We recorded a provision for credit losses ofA $4.8A million during the first six months ofA 2024.A The provision for credit losses recorded during
the firstA six months ofA 2024 primarily reflected an individual allocation for a nonperforming commercial loan relationship, allocations necessitated by net loan growth, and a change in the
historical loss information qualitative factor forA commercial loans, which more than offset the impacts of an improved economic forecast and changes to the loan portfolio composition.A A
Accrued interest receivable on loans totaling $17.8A million and $16.9A million as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, is included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. We elected not to measure an allowance for accrued interest receivable and instead elected to reverse interest income on loans that are placed on nonaccrual status, which is generally
when loans becomeA 90 days past due, or earlier if we believe the collection of interest is doubtful. We believe this policy results in the timely reversal of uncollectable interest. Identified
problem loans, which exhibit characteristics (financial or otherwise) that could cause the loans to become nonperforming or require restructuring in the future, are included on an internal
watch list. Senior management and the Board of Directors review this list regularly. In some cases, we may determine that an individual loan exhibits unique risk characteristics which
differentiate the loan from other loans within the loan segments. In such cases, the loans are evaluated for expected credit losses on an individual basis and excluded from the collective
evaluation. Specific reserve allocations of the allowance for credit losses are determined by analyzing the borrowera€™s ability to repay amounts owedA and collateral deficiencies, among other
things. A (Continued) A 13 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 1.A A A A SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) A For individually analyzed loans which are deemed to be collateral dependent loans, we adopted the practical expedient to measure the allowance based
on the fair value of collateral. The allowance is calculated on an individual loan basis based on the shortfall between the fair value of the loanad€™s collateral and the recorded principal balance.
If the fair value of the collateral exceeds the recorded principal balance, no allowance is required. Fair value estimates of collateral on individually analyzed loans, as well as on foreclosed and
repossessed assets, are reviewed periodically. We also have a process in place to monitor whether value estimates at each quarter-end are reflective of current market conditions. Our credit
policies establish criteria for obtaining appraisals and determining internal value estimates. We may also adjust outside and internal valuations based on identifiable trends within our markets,
such as recent sales of similar properties or assets, listing prices and offers received. In addition, we may discount certain appraised and internal value estimates to address distressed market
conditions. A We are also required to consider expected credit losses associated with loan commitments over the contractual period in which we are exposed to credit risk on the underlying
commitments unless the obligation is unconditionally cancellable by us. Any allowance for off-balance sheet credit exposures is reported as an other liability on our Consolidated Balance Sheets
and is increased or decreased via other noninterest expense on our Consolidated Statement of Income. The calculation includes consideration of the likelihood that funding will occur and
forecasted credit losses on commitments expected to be funded over their estimated lives. The allowance is calculated using the same aggregate reserve rates calculated for the funded portion
of loans at the portfolio level applied to the amount of commitments expected to be funded. A Mortgage Banking Activities: Mortgage loans serviced for others totaled $1.45A billion and $1.40
billion as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. Mortgage loan servicing rights are recognized as assets based on the allocated value of retained servicing rights on mortgage
loans sold. Mortgage loan servicing rights are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value and are expensed in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing revenues.
Impairment is evaluated based on the fair value of the rights using groupings of the underlying mortgage loans as to interest rates. Any impairment of a grouping is reported as a valuation
allowance. A Servicing fee income is recorded for fees earned for servicing mortgage loans. The fees are based on a contractual percentage of the outstanding principal or a fixed amount per
loan and are recorded as income when earned. Amortization of mortgage loan servicing rights is netted against mortgage loan servicing income and recorded in mortgage banking activities in
the income statement. A (Continued) A 14 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A

1.A A A A SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) A Derivatives: Derivative financial instruments are recognized as assets or liabilities at fair value. The accounting for changes in
the fair value of derivatives depends on the use of the derivatives and whether the derivatives qualify for hedge accounting. Used as part of our asset and liability management to help manage
interest rate risk, our derivatives have historically generally consisted of interest rate swap agreements that qualified for hedge accounting. We do not use derivatives for trading purposes. A
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated, for accounting purposes, as a hedge of the variability of cash flows to be received on various assets and liabilities and are effective
are reported in other comprehensive income (loss). They are later reclassified into earnings in the same periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings and are included in the
line item in which the hedged cash flows are recorded. If hedge accounting does not apply, changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized immediately in current earnings as interest
income or expense. We had no derivative instruments designated as hedges as of June 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023. A Goodwill:A The acquisition method of accounting requires that
assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination beA recorded at fair value as of the acquisition date. The valuation of assets and liabilities often involves estimates based on third-party
valuations or internal valuations based on discounted cash flow analyses or other valuation techniques, all of which are inherently subjective. This typically results in goodwill, the amount by
which the cost of net assets acquired in a business combination exceeds their fair value, which is subject to impairment testing at least annually. We review goodwill for impairment on an
annual basis as of October 1 or more often if events or circumstances indicate that it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is below its carrying value. Based on our annual
impairment analysis of goodwill as of October 1, it was determined that the fair value was in excess of its respective carrying value as of October 1, 20231% therefore, goodwill is considered not
impaired. A Revenue from Contracts with Customers: We record revenue from contracts with customers in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, 4€ceRevenue from
Contracts with Customersa€ (a€oeTopic 606a€). Under Topic 606, we must identify the contract with a customer, identify the performance obligations in the contract, determine the transaction
price, allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and recognize revenue when (or as) we satisfy a performance obligation. Significant revenue has not been



recognized in the current reporting period that results from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods. A Our primary sources of revenue are derived from interest and dividends
earned on loans, securities and other financial instruments that are not within the scope of Topic 606. We have evaluated the nature of our contracts with customers and determined that further
disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers into more granular categories beyond what is presented in the Consolidated Statements of Income was not necessary. A We generally
satisfy our performance obligations on contracts with customers as services are rendered, and the transaction prices are typically fixed and charged either on a periodic basis (generally
monthly) or based on activity. Because performance obligations are satisfied as services are rendered and the transaction prices are fixed, there is little judgment involved in applying Topic 606
that significantly affects the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers. A (Continued) A 15 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 1.A A A SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) A The following table depicts our sources of noninterest

income presented in the Consolidated Statements of Income that are scoped within Topic 606: A AA Three Months A A Three Months A A Six Months A A Six Months A A A Ended A A
Ended AA Ended AA Ended A (Dollars in thousands) A June 30, 2024 A A June 30, 2023 A A June 30, 2024 AA June 30, 2023 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Service charges on
deposn: and sweep accounts A $1,692A A $1 064A A $3,224A A $2,041A Credit and debit card income A A 2,266A A A 2,426A A A 4,387A A A 4,485A Payroll services income
AA686AAA572AAA1,582AAA1,317A Customer service fees AA 183A A A 187A A A 381A A A 407A A Service Charges on Deposit and Sweep Accounts: We earn fees from deposit and
sweep customers for account maintenance, transaction-based and overdraft services. Account maintenance fees, which relate primarily to monthly maintenance, are earned over the course of
the month reflecting the period over which we satisfy the performance obligation. Transaction-based fees, which include services such as stop payment and returned item charges, are
recognized at the time the transaction is executed as that is the point in time we fulfill the customer request. Service charges on deposit and sweep accounts are withdrawn from the customer
account balance. A Credit and Debit Card Income: We earn interchange income on our cardholder debit and credit card usage. Interchange income is primarily comprised of fees whenever our
debit and credit cards are processed through card payment networks such as Visa. Interchange fees from cardholder transactions represent a percentage of the underlying transaction value
and are recognized daily, concurrently with the transaction processing services provided to the cardholder. A Payroll Services Income: We earn fees from providing payroll processing services
for our commercial clients. Fees are assessed for processing weekly or bi-weekly payroll files, reports and documents, as well as year-end tax-related files, reports and documents. Fees are
recognized and collected as payroll processing services are completed for each payroll run and year-end processing activities. A Customer Service Fees: We earn fees by providing a variety of
other services to our customers, such as wire transfers, check ordering, sales of cashier checks and money orders, and rentals of safe deposit boxes. Generally, fees are recognized and collected
daily, concurrently with the point in time we fulfill the customer request. Safe deposit box rentals are on annual contracts, with fees generally earned at the time of the contract signing or
renewal. Customer service fees are recorded as other noninterest income on our Consolidated Statements of Income. A (Continued) A 16 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK
CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 2.A A A A SECURITIES A The amortlzehdncostn apq fair Value of avallal)le fprAsqle securltles and the

Unrealized A A Unrealized A A Fair A (Dollars in thousands) A CostA A GainsA A LossesA A ValueA June 30, 2024 AAAAA A AAAAAAAAAA US. Government agency debt obligations
A $478,920A A $112A A $(51,150)A $427,882A Mortgage-backed securities A A 33,531A A A 4A A A (6,557)A A 26,978A Municipal general obligation bonds

AA171,644A AA720A A A (8,058)A A 164,306A Municipal revenue l)o_nds AA3o, 709A AAB4AAA (2,552)AA 28, 2A41AAA Other investments

AA35168AAA20AAA (5,71 5)A A 29 473A Municipal general obhganon bonds AA 172,126A A A 1A 9?4AAAAAA(6A 1A99)1§ A 167, §QOA I\/I}lr}1c1pal revenue bonds

A A30,708A A A262A A A (2,207)A A 28,763A Other investments AA 500AAA0AAAOAAAS00AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA$680,998A A $2,206A A $(66,112)A $617,092A A
Securities with unrealized losses at June 30, 2024 andA December 31, 2023, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss
position, are as follows: A A A Less than 12 Months A A 12 Months or More A A To;al A A A Ea}rAAAAA Qn}‘eAallAzed‘A‘A Fair A A Unrealized A A Fair AA Unrealized A (Dollars in thousands)

A ValueA A LossA A ValueA A LossA A ValueA A LossA June 30, 2024 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA U.S. Government agency debt obligations R
A $28 182A A $6QAA $385, OAGgAAA $51 QSIA A $41 3‘244_A A $51, lASQA Mortge}ge l)acked §ecur1t1es AA352AAA4A AAAAZG 345A A A 6, SSSA AA26, QQZAA As, SS?A Municipal general R

(Continued) A 17 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudlted) A A 2AA A A SECURITIES (Contmued) A AA
Less than 12 Months A A 12 Months or More A A Total AA A Fair AA Unrealized A A Fair AA Unrealized A A Fair A A Unrealized A (Dollars in thousands)

AValueA A LossA A ValueA A LossA A ValueA A LossA December 31, 2023 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA US. Government agency debt obligations

A $0AA $0A A $390,496A A $52 000A A $390 496A A $52 000A Mortgage -backed securities A A 114A A A 0A A A 28,749A AA5,715A A A 28,863A A A 5,715A Municipal general obligation

bonds AA 1,109A AA6AAA106,171AAA6,184A A A 107,280A A A 6,190A Municipal revenue bonds A A 1,506A A A 8A A A 20,602A A A 2,199A A A 22,108A A A 2,207A Other investments
AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA$2,729A A $14A A $546,018A A $66,098A A $548,747A A $66,112A A We evaluate securities
in an unrealized loss position at least quarterly. Consideration is given to the financial condition of the issuer, and the intent and ability we have to retain our investment in the issuer for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. For those debt securities whose fair value is less than their amortized cost basis, we also consider our intent to sell
the security, whether it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery and if we do not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security. In
analyzing an issuera€™s financial condition, we may consider whether the securities are issued by the federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have
occurred and the results of reviews of the issuera€™s financial condition. A At June 30, 2024, 736A debt securities with estimated fair values totaling $593A million had unrealized losses
aggregating $68.3A million. At December 31, 2023, 641 debt securities with estimated fair values totaling $549 million had unrealized losses aggregating $66.1 million. At June 30, 2024,
unrealized losses aggregating $57.7A million were attributable to bonds issued or guaranteed by agencies of the U.S. Federal Government, while unrealized losses totaling $10.6A million were
associated with bonds issued by state-based municipalities. For available for sale debt securities in an unrealized loss position, we first assess whether we intend to sell, or if it is more likely
than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery of the amortized cost basis. If either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met, the debt securitya€™s
amortized cost basis is written down to fair value through income with the establishment of an allowance. For debt securities available for sale that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, we
evaluate whether any decline in fair value is due to credit loss factors. In making this assessment, we consider any changes to the rating of the security by a rating agency and adverse
conditions specifically related to the issuer of the security, among other factors. A (Continued) A 18 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 2.A A A A SECURITIES (Continued) A The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at June 30, 2024, by maturity, are shown in the following
table. The contractual maturity is utilized for U.S. Government agency debt obligations and municipal bonds. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may
have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Securities not due at a single maturity date, primarily mortgage-backed securities, are shown
separately A A AAAAAAAAAAA Amortized AA Fair A (Dollars in thousands) A Cost AA ValueAAAAAAAAAA Duein 2024 A $36,407A A $35,906A Due in 2025 through 2029

A A 347,975A A A 320,540A Due in 2030 through 2034 A A 257,961A A A 225,847A Due in 2035 and beyond A A 38,930A A A 38,136A Mortgage-backed securities A A 33,531A A A 26,978A
Other investments A A 500A A A 500A AAAAAAAAA Total available for sale securities A $715,304A A $647,907A A No securities were sold during the first six months ofA 2024 or the full-
year 2023. A Securities issued by the State of Michigan and all its political subdivisions had combined amortized costs of $202A million andA $203A million as ofA June 30, 2024 andA
December 31, 2023, respectively, with estimated market values of $193A million and $197 million at the respective dates. We had no securities issued by all other states and their political
subdivisions as of June 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023. Total securities of any other specific issuer, other than the U.S. Government and its agencies and the State of Michigan and all its
political subdivisions, did not exceed 10% of shareholdersa€™ equity. A The carrying value of U.S. Government agency debt obligation securities that are pledged to secure repurchase
agreements was $222A million and $230A million at June 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, respectively. A A (Continued) A 19 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES
TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A A A 3.A A A A LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES A Commercial loans are divided among five segments based
primarily on collateral type, risk characteristics, and primary and secondary sources of repayment. These segments are then further stratified based on the commercial loan grade that is
assigned using our standard loan grading paradigm. Retail loans are divided into one of two groups based on risk characteristics and source of repayment. Our allowance for credit loss pools
are consistent with those used for loan note disclosure purposes. A Our loan portfolio segments as of bothA June 30, 2024A andA December 31, 2023 were as follows: A A o Commercial
Loans A 4- Commercial and Industrial: Risks to this loan category include industry concentration and the practical limitations associated with monitoring the condition of the collateral which
often consists of inventory, accounts receivable, and other non-real estate assets. Equipment and inventory obsolescence can also pose a risk. Declines in general economic conditions and other
events can cause cash flows to fall to levels insufficient to service debt. A A 4- Owner Occupied Commercial Real Estate: Risks to this loan category include industry concentration and the
inability to monitor the condition of the collateral. Declines in general economic conditions and other events can cause cash flows to fall to levels insufficient to service debt. Also, declines in
real estate values and lack of suitable alternative use for the properties are risks for loans in this category. A A - Non-Owner Occupied Commercial Real Estate: Loans in this category are
susceptible to declines in occupancy rates, business failure, and general economic conditions. Also, declines in real estate values and lack of suitable alternative use for the properties are risks
for loans in this category. A A 4- Multi-Family and Residential Rental: Risks to this loan category include industry concentration and the inability to monitor the condition of the collateral.
Loans in this category are susceptible to weakening general economic conditions and increases in unemployment rates, as well as market demand and supply of similar property and the
resulting impact on occupancy rates, market rents, cash flow, and income-based real estate values. Also, the lack of a suitable alternative use for the properties is a risk for loans in this
category. A A a- Vacant Land, Land Development and Residential Construction: Risks common to commercial construction loans are cost overruns, changes in market demand for property,
inadequate long-term financing arrangements, and declines in real estate values. Residential construction loans are susceptible to those same risks as well as those associated with residential
mortgage loans. Changes in market demand for property could lead to longer marketing times resulting in higher carrying costs, declining values, and higher interest rates. A A o Retail Loans
A &- 1-4 Family Mortgages: Residential mortgage loans are susceptible to weakening general economic conditions and increases in unemployment rates and declining real estate values. A A
a- Other Consumer Loans: Risks common to these loans include regulatory risks, unemployment, and changes in local economic conditions as well as the inability to monitor collateral
consisting of personal property. A During the year ended December 31, 2023, we changed the segmentation of credit cards to business customers from other consumer loans to commercial and
industrial loans. This division of the credit card balances was done to better align the risk characteristics of the portfolio, which include the customer type and source of repayment. Credit cards
to business customers totaled $17.8 millionA as of December 31, 2023. We also changed the segmentation of home equity lines of credit from 1-4 family mortgage loans to other consumer loans
during the year ended December 31, 2023. Home equity lines of credit share many of the same risk characteristics of both segments, however, losses are primarily driven by a lack of underlying
collateral value during distressed situations as many of the loans are in a second lien position, and thus, best segmented within the other consumer portfolio. Home equity lines of credit totaled
$38 1 millionA as of December 31, 2023. A (Continued) A 20 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A
3.AAA A LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSESA (Contmued) A Our total loans at June 30, 2024 were $4 44A billion Compared to $4.30A lgllllon at December 31, 2023, an increase

A A Increase A (Dollars in thousands) A BalanceA A %A A BalanceA A %A A (Decrease)A AA A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Commerciai AAAAAA A AAAAAAAAAAA A A
Commercial and industrial A $1,275,745A A A 28.8%A $1,254,586A A A 29.2%A A 1.7% Vacant land, land development, and residential construction

AA76,247AAA1.7AAA74,753A AA 1.7AA A 2.0A Real estate a€” owner occupied A A 732,844A A A 16.5A AA 717,667A A A 16.7A A A 2.1A Real estate 46” non-owner occupied

A A1,059,053A AA23.9AAA1,035684A AA24.1AA A 2.3A Real estate 4€” multi-family and residential rental A A 389,390A A A 8.8A A A 332,609A AA 7.7A A A 17.1A Total commercial
AA3,533279AAA79.7AAA 3,415200A AA79.4AAA35AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Retail: AMAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 14 family mortgages

A A 849,625A A A 19.1A A A 837,406A A A 19.5A A A 1.5A Other consumer loans A A 55,341AAA 1.2A AA51,053A AA 1.1A A A 8.4A Total retail

AA904,966A AA203AAA883459AAA206AAA1. OAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Totalloans A $4,438, 245A A A 100. 0"/91%$f1 303,758A A A 100.0%A A 3.1% A (Continued)
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA AAAAAAAAAA Commercial and industrial A $0A A $115A A $4,803A A $4,918A A $1,270,827A A $1,275,745A A $0A Vacant land, land development
and residential construction AA OAAAOAAAOAAAOAAA76,247A A A 76,247A A A OA Real estate 4€” owner occupied AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAA732,844A A A 732,844A A A 0A
Real estate 4€“ non- owner occupied AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAA1,059,053AAA1,059,053A A A0A Real estate 4€“ multi-family and residential rental
AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAB389390A A A 389,390A A A0A Total commercial

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 1-4 famlly mortgages A A 702A AA519A AA 123A A A 1,344A A A 848,281A A A 849, 625AAAOA Other consumer loans
AA108AAA18AAAOAAA126AAAS55215AAA55341AAA0A Totalretail

A $810A A $652A A $4,926A A $6, 388A A $4,431, 857A Asa, 438 245A A $0A A (Continued) A 22 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 3.A A A ALOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES (Continued) A An age analys1s of past due loans is as follows as of December 31, 2023:

DueAACurrentAALoansAAAccrumgAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Commercial AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Commercial and
mdustpglA $4A A $QAAAA$249AAA $253A A $1 254, SBSAA $1,254,586A A $0A Vacant land, land development and res1gient1al construction

AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAA 74, 753A A A 74,753A A A 0A Real estate 4€“ owner occupied A A OAA A 0OAAA70AAA70AAA717,597A A A 717,667A A A OA Real estate 4€“ non-owner

occupied AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAA1,035684A A A 1,035,684A A A 0A Real estate 4€“ multi-family and residential rental

>
>



AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAB332609AAA332,609AAA0A Total commercial

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 14 family mortgages A A 934A A A 145AAA38AAA1,117A A A 836, 289AAA837 406A A A 0A Other consumer loans
AA97AAAO0AAAO0AAA97A A A50,956A A A51,053A A A0A Total retail

AA1,031AAA145AAA38AAA1,214A A A 887, 245AAA888 459AAA0AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Total past due loans

A $1,035A A $145A A $357A A $1,537A A $4,302,221A A $4,303,758A A $0A A (Continued) A 23 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudlted) A A 3A AAA LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES (Continued) A Nonaccrual loans as of June 30, 2024 were as follows: A

allowance recorded: AAAAAAAA Commerciai AAAAAAAA Commerc1al and industrial A $6 591A A $5,830A Vacant land, land development and residential construction A A 0A A A 0A

Real estate 4€“ owner occupied A A 0A A A 0A Real estate 4€" non-owner occupied A AOAAAOA Real estate 4€" multi-family and residential rental A A 0A A A OA Total commercial

AA 900A AA 316A AAAAAAAAA Total w1th an allowance recorded A $7 491A A $6,146AAAAAAAAAA Total nonaccrual loans: AAAAAAAA Commercial A $6,840A A $5 830A
Retail A A 2,289A A A 316A Total nonaccrual loans A $9,129A A $6,146A A Nonaccrual loans represent the entire balance of collateral dependent loans. As of June 30, 2024A andA December
31, 2023, all collateral dependent loans were secured by real estate, with the exception of those classified as commercial and industrial, which were secured by accounts receivable, inventory,
and equipment.A Interest income recognized on nonaccrual loans totaledA $0.4A million and less than $0.1 million during the six months endedA June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
reflecting the collectlon of interest at the time of principal pay- off. A A (Continued) A 24 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

A A RecordedAAAAAA Pr1nc1pal A A Related A (Dollars in thousands) A BalanceA A AllowanceA With no allowance recorded: AAAAAAAA Commermal AAAA A A A A Commercial

and industrial A $0A A $0A Vacant land, land development and residential construction A A 0A A A 0A Real estate 4€“ owner occupied A A 70A A A 0A Real estate 4€“ non-owner occupied

A AO0AAAOA Real estate 4€" multi-family and residential rental A A 0AAA0A Total commercial A A 70A A A 0A A AAAAAAAA Retail: AAAAAAAA 1-4 family mortgages

allowance recorded: AAAAAAAA Commerciai AAAAAAAA Commermal and industrial A $249A A $1A Vacant land, land development and residential construction A A 0A A A 0A Real

estate 4€“ owner occupied AAOAA A OA Real estate 4€" non-owner occupied A AOAAADOA Real estate &€ multi-family and residential rental A A OA A A 0A Total commercial

Total with an allowance recorded A $1, 073A A$241AAAAA A A A AA Total nonaccrual loans: AAAAAAAA Commercial A $319A A $1A Retail A A 3,096A A A 240A Total nonaccrual
loans A $3, 415A A $241A A (Continued) A 25 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A

3.A A A ALOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES (Continued) A Credit Quality Indicators. We utilize a comprehensive grading system for our commercial loans. All commercial loans
are graded on a ten grade rating system. The rating system utilizes standardized grade paradigms that analyze several critical factors such as cash flow, operating performance, financial
condition, collateral, industry condition and management. All commercial loans are graded at inception and reviewed and, if appropriate, re-graded at various intervals thereafter. The primary
risk elements with respect to commercial loans are the financial condition of the borrower, sufficiency of collateral, and timeliness of scheduled payments. We have a policy of requesting and
reviewing periodic financial statements from commercial loan customers and employ a disciplined and formalized review of the existence of collateral and its value. All commercial loans are
graded using the following criteria: A Grade 1. &€ceExceptionala€A A Loans with this rating contain very little, if any, risk. A A Grade 2. 4€ceOutstandinga€A A Loans with this rating have
excellent and stable sources of repayment and conform to bank policy and regulatory requirements. A A Grade 3. a€ceVery Gooda€A A Loans with this rating have strong sources of repayment
and conform to bank policy and regulatory requirements. These are loans for which repayment risks are acceptable. A A Grade 4. 4€ceGood4a€A A Loans with this rating have solid sources of
repayment and conform to bank policy and regulatory requirements. These are loans for which repayment risks are modest. A A Grade 5. &€ceAcceptablea€A A Loans with this rating exhibit
acceptable sources of repayment and conform with most bank policies and all regulatory requirements. These are for loans for which repayment risks are satisfactory. A A Grade 6.
a€ceMonitora€A A Loans with this rating are considered to have emerging weaknesses which may include negative current cash flow, high leverage, or operating losses. Generally, if further
deterioration is observed, these credits will be downgraded to the criticized asset report. A A Grade 7. &€ceSpecial Mentiona€A A Loans with this rating have potential weaknesses that deserve
managementa€™s close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan at some future date. A A Grade 8.
a€ceSubstandarda€A A Loans with this rate are inadequately protected by current sound net worth, paying capacity of the obligor, or of the pledged collateral, if any. A Substandard loan
normally has one or more well-defined weaknesses that jeopardize the repayment of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility of loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. A A
Grade 9. a€ceDoubtfula€A A Loans with this rating exhibit all the weaknesses inherent in the Substandard classification and where collection or liquidation in full is highly questionable and
improbable. A A Grade 10. 4€ceLossa€A A Loans with this rating are considered uncollectable, and of such little value that continuance as an active asset is not warranted. A The primary risk
element with respect to each residential real estate loan and consumer loan is the timeliness of scheduled payments. We have a reporting system that monitors past due loans and have adopted
policies to pursue creditorsa€ ™A rights in order to preserve our collateral position. Retail loans that reach 90 days or more past due are generally placed into nonaccrual status and are
categonzed as nonperforming. A (Continued) A 26 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudu:ed) A A

3A .A A ALOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES (Continued) A The following table reﬂects amortized cost basis of loans and year-to-date loan charge-offs as ofA June 30, 2024

Industrial: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Grades 1 8€“ 4 A $43, 698A A $90, 915A A $65, 201AA $77 AO{}lAA $16,477A A $10,412A A $303,784A A $404,668A A $708,452A Grades 5 a€”
7AA92,443A AA130,979A A A 24,222A AA13,297A AA 16,270A A A 7,819A A A 285,030A A A 266,315A A A 551,345A Grades 8 4€“ 9
AA2,037AAA57AAA6,104AAA270AAA0AAAO0AAABS8468A A A 7,480AAA 15,948A Total

A $138,178A A $221, 951AA $95,527A A $90,648A A $32, 747A A $18,231A A $597,282A A $678,463A A $1,275,745A Year-to-date gross write offs

AA19, oquﬁA 14,192AAA16,344AAA131AAA1AAA 5314AAA50 257A A A 0A'A A 50,257A Grades 8 4€“ 9 A A OA A A 7AAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAA7AAAOAAA7A Total
A $33,520A A $23,855A A $17,162A A $724A A $186A A $791A A $76,247A A $0A A $76,247A Year-to-date gross write offs

A A 46,889A A A 89,336A A A59,326AAA24,475AAA18,467AAA 7, 423AAA 245, 916AAA 13, 564AAA 259, 480A Grades 8ae" 9

AAOAAAOAAA365AAAOAAA36AAAOAAA401AAAOAAA401A “Total

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Grades 1 46" 4 A $45,856A A $98,824A A $80,072A A $103,974A A $03,341A A $21,332A A $443,399A A $0A A $443,309A Grades 5 4€" 7
AA131,366A A A 185976A A A 90,646A A A 87,715A A A 90,308A A A 19,979A A A 605,990A A A 0A A A 605,990A Grades 8 4€” 9
AAOGGIAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAADOG64AAAOAAAOGGIA Total

A $186,886A A $284,800A A $170,718A A $191,689A A $183,649A A $41,311A A $1,059,053A A $0A A $1,059,053A Year-to-date gross write offs

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAARA Grades 14a€” 4 A $5,856A A $45,763A A $10,311A A $64,188A A $34,139A A $6,279A A $166, 536AA$OAA$166 536A Grades 5 &€“ 7
AA11,524A A A 122,550A A A 60,570A A A 4,247A A A 8,537A A A 3,208AAA210,636AAA45A AA210,681A Grades 8 4€ 9
AAOAAA11,199AAA0AAAOAAA974AAAOAAA12,173AAAOAAA 12,173A Total

A $17,380A A $179,512A A $70,881A A $68,435A A $43,650A A $9,487A A $389,345A A $45A A $389,390A Year-to-date gross write offs

A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A Total Commercial

A $469,431A A $989,776A A $520,577A A $454,391A A $318,906A A $88,126A A $2,841,207A A $692,072A A $3,533,279A Total CommerCIal year-to-date gross write offs

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 1.4 Family Mortgages: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Performing
A $31,524A A $142,900A A $323,590A A $220,541A A $75,844A A $53,043A A $847,442A A $0A A $847,442A Nonperforming
AAOAAA101AAAB86AAA265AAA0AAA931AAA2183AAA0AAA?2183A Total

A $31,524A A $143,001A A $324,476A A $220,806A A $75,844A A $53,974A A $849,625A A $0A A $849,625A Year-to-date gross write offs

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAARA Performing A $3,104A A $3,972A A $1,952A A $1,067A A $480A A $713A A $11, 288AA $43,947A A $55,235A
Nonperforming A A 106AAA0AAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAA106AAAO0AAAI106A Total

A $3,210A A $3,972A A $1,952A A $1,067A A $480A A $713A A $11,394A A $43,947A A $55,341A Year-to-date gross write offs A $0A A $1A A $18A A $8A A $0A A $5A A $32A A $3A A $35A
Total Retail A $34,734A A $146,973A A $326,428A A $221,873A A $76,324A A $54,687A A $861,019A A $43,947A A $904,966A Total Retail year-to-date gross write offs
A$0AA$1AA$18AA $8A A $0AA$5AA$32AA$3AA$35AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Total

A $504,165A A $1,136,749A A $847,005A A $676,264A A $395,230A A $142,813A A $3,702,226A A $736,019A A $4,438,245A Total year-to-date gross write offs

A $0A A $1A A $18A A $8A A $OA A $5A A $32A A $9A A $41A A There were lines of credit with principal balances of $5.0A million that were converted to term loans during the first six
months ofA 2024. A (Continued) A 27 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaud1ted) A A 3.AAAALOANS AND

Industrial: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Grades 1 a€" 4 )
A $103,531A A $79,883A A $90,107A A $20,577A A $5,978A A $9,160A A $309,236A A $414,920A A $724,156A Grades 5 &€ 7
AA174,668A AA57,979A AA20,075A A A 18,361AAA 7,450A AA 119A A A 278,652A A A 227,155A A A 505,807A Grades 8 4€“ 9

AA3,671AAA2,122AAA277AAA0AAAO0AAAO0AAAG,070AAA18,553A A A 24,623A Total o R
A $281, 87OAA $139, 984AA $110, 459A A $38, 938AA $13, 428A A $9,279A A $593,958A A $660,628A A $1,254,586A Year-to-date gross write offs

Construction: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Grades14€" 4 A $24,875A A $6,570A A $1,108A A $2,110A A $0A A $281A A $34,944A A $0A A $34,944A Grades 5 4€" 7

AA17,799AAA21,244AAA138AAA2AAA40AAA496AAA39,719AAA0AAA39,719A Grades 8 4€“9AA9AAAO0AAAOAAAOAAAOAAABIAAA90AAAOAAADO9OA Total
A $42, 683A A $27, 814AA $1, 246A A $2, 112AA $40AA $858A A $74,753A A $0A A $74,753A Year-to-date gross write offs

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Grades 1 &€ 4A $205, 379AA$110 130AA$85 982AA $47,630A A $14,362A A $2,908A A $466 391A A $1, 948AA$468 339A Grades 5
a€“7AA111,197AAA63,271AAA27,729A A A 27,029A AA 9,419A A A 439A A A 239,084A A A 9,718A A A 248,802A Grades 8 4€" 9
AAOAAA417AAA0AAA38AAAO0AAA7IAAAS526AAA0AAAS526A Total

A $316,576A A $173,818A A $113,711A A $74,697A A $23,781A A $3,418A A $706,001A A $11,666A A $717,667A Year-to-date gross write offs

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Grades1a€"4 X
A $109,125A A $84,912A A $113,846A A $102,279A A $27,664A A $13,193A A $451,019A A $0A A $451,019A Grades 5 a€" 7
AA233471AAA 118,464A AA 109,238A AA 88,315AA A 6,148A A A 18,135A A A 573,771A A A 0A A A 573,771A Grades 8 4€" 9

AA10,894AAA0AAA0AAAOAAAOAAAOAAA10,894A A A OAAA10,894A Total o o .
A $353, 490A A $203, 376AA $223, 084A A $190, 594AA $33,812A A $31,328A A $1,035,684A A $0A A $1,035,684A Year-to-date gross write offs

AA72,916AAA55964AAA4,816AAA9,372AAA 2,699AAA2,136AAA 147,903A A A 0A A A 147,903A Grades 8 4€" 9
AA11,250AAA0AAAOAAAT,00l1AAAOAAAOAAA12,251AAAOAAA12,251A Total

A $120,204A A $84,476A A $69,060A A $45,502A A $7,582A A $5,785A A $332,609A A $0A A $332,609A Year-to-date gross write offs
A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $0A Total Commercial



AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAARAAAAARAAA 1A4AFam11yMor‘tgagesAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Performing
A $133,823A A $332,098A A $231,842A A $82,002A A $10,515A A $44,003A A $834,283A A $27A A $834,310A Nonperforming

AA108AAA1,728AAA305AAA0AAA10AAA945A A A 3,096AAA 0AAAS3,096A Total o R
A $133, 931AA $333, 826AA $232, 147A A $82, 002AA $10, 525AA $44,948A A $837,379A A $27A A $837,406A Year-to-date gross write offs

Nonperforming AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOA Total A $5 138A A $2 569A A $1 664A A $608A A $651A A $716A A $1 1,346A A $39 707A A $51 053A Year-to-
date gross write offs A $0A A $3A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $3A A $6A A $17A A $23A Total Retail

A $139,069A A $336,395A A $233,811A A $82,610A A $11,176A A $45,664A A $848,725A A $39,734A A $888,459A Total Retail year-to-date gross write offs

A $0A A $55A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $242A A $297A A $38A A $335AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Total

A $1,253,892A A $965,863A A $751,371A A $434,453A A $89,819A A $96,332A A $3,591,730A A $712,028A A $4,303,758A Total year-to-date gross write offs

A $0A A $69A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $242A A $311A A $256A A $567A A There were lines of credit with principal balances of $6.4 million as of December 31, 2022 that were converted to term
loans during 2023.A A (Continued) A 28 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 3.A A A A LOANS
AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES (Continued) A We use a migration to loss methodology to determine historical loss rates for commercial loans given the comprehensive loan grading
process employed by our bank for over two decades, while an open pool approach is best suited for retail loans given the smaller dollar size of the segments. A baseline loss rate is produced at
each reporting date for each loan portfolio segment using bank-specific loan charge-off and recovery data over a defined historical look-back period. The look-back period represents the number
of data periods that will be used to calculate a baseline loss rate for each loan portfolio segment. We determined that the look-back period commencing on January 1, 2011 through the current
reporting date was reasonable and appropriate, which was used in the calculation of both the June 30, 2024 andA December 31, 2023A allowance for credit losses. A Our historical loss rate is
then applied to future loan balances at the instrument level based on remaining contractual life adjusted for amortization, prepayment and default to develop a baseline lifetime loss. Our
prepayment speed assumptions are developed at the loan segment level based upon the consideration of all relevant dataA which we believe couldA impact anticipated customer behavior,
including changes in interest rates, economic conditions, and underlying property valuations. For the commercial portfolio segments, we assumed a 2.0% prepayment speed as of both June 30,
2024 andA December 31, 2023 as we deemed there to be no considerable changes from historical experience. For the retail 1-4 family mortgage and retail other consumer portfolios, we used a
prepayment speed of 9.0% as of June 30, 2024 andA December 31, 2023.A During each reporting period, we also consider the need to adjust the historical loss rates as determined to reflect
the extent to which we expect current conditions and reasonable and supportable economic forecasts to differ from the conditions that existed for the period over which the historical loss
information was determined. These qualitative adjustments may increase or decrease our estimate of expected future credit losses. As of June 30, 2024 andA December 31, 2023, we used a
one-year reasonable and supportable economic forecast period, with a six-month straight-line reversion period for all loan segments. The economic forecasts used for our June 30, 2024
allowance calculation reflected a $2.3A million allowance balance reduction. The forecasts used for our December 31, 2023 allowance calculation reflected a $2.0A million allowance balance
reduction. A Individual loans exhibiting unique risk characteristics which differentiated the loans from other loans within the loan segments and wereA evaluated for expected credit losses on
an individual basis totaled $10.9A million and $5.4A million as of June 30, 2024 andA December 31, 2023, respectively. Individual allowance allocations totaled $6. 3A million and $0.4A million
as of June 30, 2024 andA December 31, 2023, respectively. A (Continued) A 29 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 3.A A A A LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES (Continued) A Activity in the allowance for credit losses during theA three and six months ended
June 30, 2024A is as follows: A

4€“A A real estate 4€“A A multi- -familyA AAAAAOtherAAAAAAAAA (Dollars in A andA A residentialA A ownerA A non-ownerA A andA A 1-4 famllyA A consumerA AAAA A A thousands)
A industrialA A constructionA A occupiedA A occupiedA A residential

rentalA A mortgagesA A loansA A UnallocatedA A Total AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Balance at 3-31-24

A $9,178A A $387A A $7,092A A $10,141A A $3,420A A $18,580A A $2,825A A $15A A $51,638A Provision for credit losses

AA4,010AAA4AAA (4)AA108A A A 165A A A (93)A A (684)A A (6)A A 3,500A Charge-offs AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAA (26)AA 0A A A (26) Recoveries
AA27AAA2AAA102AAA0AAA4AAA26AAA135AAA0AAA?296A Ending balance

A $13,215A A $393A A $7,190A A $10,249A A $3,589A A $18,513A A $2,250A A $9A A $55,408AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Balance at 12-31-23
A $7,441A A $384A A $7,186A A $9,852A A $3,184A A $18,986A A $2,881A A $0A A $49,914A Provision for credit losses

AA5476AAA6AAA (155AA397AAA397AAA (569)A A (761)A A 9A A A 4,800A Charge-offs AA (6)AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAA35)AAO0AAA (41) Recoveries
AA304AAA3AAA159AAA0AAABAAA96AAA165AAA0AAA735A Ending balance A $13,215A A $393A A $7,190A A $10,249A A $3,589A A $18,513A A $2,250A A $9A A $55,408A

A Activity in the allowance for credit losses during theA three and six months ended June 30, 2023 is as follows: A

A A residential rental A A mortgagesAA loans A A UnallocatedAA TotalAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Balance at 3-31-23

A $10,181A A $510A A $5,711A A $9,168A A $2,427A A $14,648A A $156A A $76A A $42,877A Provision for credit losses

AA(3616)AA (217)AA105A AA (479)A A 1,268A AA 4,973A A A 21A A A (55)A A 2,000A Charge-offs AA (182)AA0AAAOAAAO0AAAOAAA (270)A A (9)A A 0A A A (461) Recoveries
AABIAAA11AAA22AAAO0AAASAAA147AAA31A A A 0AAA305A Ending balance

A $6,472A A $304A A $5,838A A $8,689A A $3,700A A $19,498A A $199A A $21A A $44,721AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Balance at 12-31-22
A $10,203A A $490A A $5,914A A $9,242A A $2,191A A $14,027A A $160A A $19A A $42,246A Provision for credit losses

AA(3,623)AA (198)A A (132)AA (553)A A 1,497AAA5591AAA16AAA2AAA2,600A Charge-offs AA (218)AA0AAA (14)AA0AAAOAAA (312)A A (23)A A 0A A A (567) Recoveries
AA110AAA12AAA70AAAOAAA 12AA'A 1924 A A'46A A A 0A A A 4424 Ending balance A $6,472A A $304A A $5,838A A $8,689A A $3,700A A $19,498A A $199A A $21A A $44,721A A
(Continued) A 30 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 3.A A A LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR

CREDIT LOSSESA (Continued) A The followmg table presents the period-end amortized CostA ba31sA of modlflcatlonsA to borrowers experiencing fman(:lal dlfflculty by type of mOdlflCathl‘l

Term Extension A A Forgiveness A Commercia: AAAAAAAAAAAA Commercial and 1ndustnal A $OA A $2,318A A $0A Vacant land, land development and residential construction

AAOAAAOAAAOA Real estate &€" owner occupied AAOAAAOAAAQOA Real estate a€” non-owner occupied AAOAAAOAA A 0A Real estate 4€“ multi-family and residential rental

AAOAAAOAAADOA Total retail A $0A A $0A A $OA AAAAAAAAAAAAA Total loans A $OA A $2,318A A $0A A Loans listed under Term Extension were generally granted a series of
short-term maturity extensions as part of the workout process and associated forbearance agreements. A (Continued) A 31 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 3.A° A A LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSESA (Continued) A There were no loans modified to borrowers
expenencmg financial dlfflculty during the first three months of 2023.A The following table presents the period-end amortized CostA ba51sA of modlﬁcatlonsA to borrowers experlencmg financial

Extension A A Forgiveness A Commercia: AAAAAAAAAAAA Commercial and 1ndustnal A $0A A $10,520A A $OA Vacant land, land development and residential construction

AAOAAAOAAAOA Real estate a4€” owner occupled AAO0AAA207AAA0A Beglﬂesﬂtaﬂteﬂ &4€" non- qm{ngrpqctlp}eq A A 0A A A 0A A A OA Real estate 4€" multi-family and residential rental

DaysAAAAA (Dollars in thousands) A Current A A Past Due A A Past Due AA Total A Commercia: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Commermal and industrial o
A $4, 818A A $OA A $0A A $4 818A Vacant land, land development and residential Constructlon A AOAA A 0A A AOAA A OA Real estate 4€“ owner occupled A AOA A A OAAAOAAADOA Real

AA OA AAOAAAOAAAOA Total retail A $0A A $0A A $0AA $0AAAAAA A AAAAAAAAAAA Total loans A $14 482A A $0A A $0A A $14,482A A (Contlnued) A 32 Table of Contents
MERCANTILE BANK CORPQRAT}ON NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 4.A A A A PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET A Premises and eqmpment are

and equlpment net A $50,158A A $50,928A A Deprematlon expense totaled $1.5A mllhon and $1. 4A million dunng the second quarters ofA 2024 and 2023, respectlvely We enter into
facility leases in the normal course of business. As of June 30, 2024, we were under lease contracts for ten of our banking facilities. The leases have maturity dates ranging from February, 2025
through May, 2048, with a weighted average life ofA 9.2A years as of June 30, 2024. All of our leases have multiple three- to five-year extensions; however, these were not factored in the lease
maturities and weighted average lease term as it was not reasonably certain we would exercise the options on the dates we entered into the lease agreements. A Leases are classified as either
operating or finance leases at the lease commencement date, with all of our current leases determined to be operating leases. Lease expense for operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Right-of-use assets represent our right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, while lease liabilities represent our obligation to make lease payments arising
from the lease. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date at the estimated present value of lease payments over the lease term. We use our
incremental borrowmg rate, on a collateralized basis, at lease commencement to calculate the present value of lease payments. The weighted average discount rate for leases was 6.5% as of
June 30, 2024. A The right-of-use assets, included in premises and equipment, net on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, and the lease liabilities, included in other liabilities on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets, totaled $4.9A million and $3.7 million as of June 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, respectively. As permitted by applicable accounting standards, we have elected not to
recognize short-term leases with original terms of twelve months or less on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Total operating lease expense associated with the leases aggregated

$0.4A millionA during the second quarter of 2024 and $0.5 mllllorr dyrlng the second quarterA 2023.A A (Continued) A 33 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudlted) A A 4.A A A APREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET (Contmued) A Future lease payments were as follows as of June 30, 2024: A A
(Dollars in thousands) A AAA 2024 A $605A 2025 A A 1,124A 2026 A A 1,068A 2027 A A 999A 2928 A A ?22A Thereaftgr A A 1,647A Total undiscounted lease payments AA 6,265A Less
effect of dlscountlng A A (1,343) Present value of future lease payments (lease liability) A $4,922A A 5.A A A ADEPOSITS A Our total deposits at June 30, 2024 totaled $4.15A billion, an
increase of $246A million, or 6.3%, from December 31, 2023. The components of our outstanding balances at June 30, 2024 andA December 31, 2023, and percentage change in deposits from

the end of 2023A to the end of the second quarter of 2024, are as follows: A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Percent AAA June 30,2024 A A December 31, 2023 A A Increase A (Dollars

in thousands) A BalanceA A %A A BalanceA A %A A (Decrease)A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Noninterest- bearmg checkmg

A $1,119, 888A A A 27.0%A $1,247, 640A A A 32.1%A A (10. 2)% Interest-bearing checking AA641,923AAA 15,5A A A 635,790A A A 16.3A A A 1.0A Money market

A A1,268,759A A A 30.6A AA957,434A A A24.5A A A 32.5A Savings A A 246,614AAA59AAA262,566AAA6.7AAA (6.1) Time, under $100,000

AA19s, 147AAA4 8AAA175741AAA45AAA12.7A Time, $100,000 and over A A 518,090A A A 12.5A A A 453, 366AAA 11.6A A A 14.3A Total local deposits

A 34 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudlted) AA A A A 6. A A A A SECURITIES SOLD UNDER
AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE A Securltles sold under agreements to repurchase (&€cerepurchase agreementsa€) are offered prmc1pa11y to certain large dep051t customers. Information

A $221,103A A $204,334A Average interest rate during the period A A 3.09%A A 1.33%AAAAAAAAA Max1mum dally balance during the period A $258,253A A $269,324A A Repurchase
agreements have maturities of one business day. Repurchase agreements are treated as financings, and the obligations to repurchase securities sold are reflected as liabilities on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Repurchase agreements are secured by U.S. Government agency securities with an aggregate fair value equal to the aggregate outstanding balance of the
repurchase agreements. The securities, which are included in securities available for sale on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, are held in safekeeping by a correspondent bank. A



7.A A A A FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK OF INDIANAPOLIS ADVANCES A FHLBI bullet advances totaled $400A million at June 30, 2024, and were scheduled to mature at varying dates from
July 2024A through January 2029, with fixed rates of interest from 0.69%A to 4.54%A and averaging 3.03%. FHLBI bullet advances totaled $440A million at December 31, 2023, and were
scheduled to mature at varying dates from January 2024A through December 2028, with fixed rates of interest from 0.55%A to 5.05%A and averaging 2.93%. A Maturities of FHLBI bullet
advances as of June 30, 2024 were as follows: A (Dollars in thousands) AA A A 2024 A $40,000A 2025 A A 80,000A 2026 A A 80,000A 2027 A A 100,000A 2028 A A 90,000A Thereafter

A A 10,000A A (Continued) A 35 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 7.A A A A FEDERAL HOME
LOAN BANK OF INDIANAPOLIS ADVANCES (Continued) A FHLBI amortizing advances totaled $27. 1A million as of June 30, 2024, with an average rate of 2. 52%A and with final maturities in
2042. FHLBI amortizing advances totaled $27.9A million as of December 31, 2023, with an average rate of 2.52%A and with final maturities in 2042. FHLBI amortizing advances are obtained
periodically to assist in managing interest rate risk associated with certain longer-term fixed rate commercial loans, with annual principal payments that closely align with the scheduled
amortization of the underlying commercial loans. A Scheduled principal payments on FHLBI amortizing advances as ofA June 30, 2024 were as follows: A (Dollars in thousands) A A A A 2024
A $0A 2025 A A 826A 2026 A A 862A 2027 A A 899A 2028 A A 938A Thereafter A A 23,558A A Each advance is payable at its maturity date, and is subject to a prepayment fee if paid prior
to the maturity date. The advances are collateralized by residential mortgage loans, first mortgage liens on multi-family residential property loans, first mortgage liens on commercial real estate
property loans, and substantially all other assets of our bank under a blanket lien arrangement. Our borrowing line of credit as ofA June 30, 2024 totaled $1.01A billion, with remaining
availability based on collateral of $576A million. A 8.A A A A COMMITMENTS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK A We are a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the
normal course of business to meet the financing needs of our customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Loan commitments to
extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by
our bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since
many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. A These instruments involve,
to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized, if any, in the balance sheet. Our maximum exposure to loan loss in the event of nonperformance by the other
party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those instruments. We use the same credit
policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as we do for on-balance sheet instruments. Collateral, such as accounts receivable, securities, inventory, and property and
equipment, is generally obtained based on managementa€™s credit assessment of the borrower. A We are required to consider expected credit losses associated with loan commitments over
the contractual period in which we are exposed to credit risk on the underlying commitments unless the obligation is unconditionally cancellable by us. Any allowance for off-balance sheet
credit exposures is reported as an other liability on our Consolidated Balance Sheet and is increased or decreased via other noninterest expense on our Consolidated Statement of Income. The
calculation includes consideration of the likelihood that funding will occur and forecasted credit losses on commitments expected to be funded over their estimated lives. The allowance is
calculated using the same aggregate reserve rates calculated for the funded portion of loans at the portfolio level applied to the amount of commitments expected to be funded. A (Continued)
A 36 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 8.A A A A COMMITMENTS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET
RISK (Continued) A For commercial lines of credit, retail lines of credit and credit card average outstanding balances, we determined allowance requirements by calculating the difference
between the average percent outstanding of the funded commitments over the past several years to actual percent outstanding at the end of the period and applying the respective expected
loss allocation factors to the difference as this difference represents the average of unfunded commitments we expect to eventually be drawn upon. For commitments to make loans, we
determine an allowance by applying the expected loss allocation factor to the amount expected to be funded. The calculated allowance aggregated $0.7A million and $1.3A million as of June 30,
2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. We do not reserve for residential mortgage construction loans, as the loans are for one year or less and draws are governed by the receipt and
satisfactory review of contractor and subcontractor sworn statements, lien waivers and title insurance company endorsements. Letters of credit are rarely drawn. A At June 30, 2024, and
December 31, 2023, the rates on existing off-balance sheet instruments were substantlally equlvalent to current market rates, consuiermg the underlymg credit standing of the counterpartles

properties A A77,957A A A 74,120A Credit card unused lines of credit A A 157,426A A A 142,096A Other consumer unused lines of credit A A 40,822A A A 50,063A Commitments to make
loans A A 255,382A A A 270,403A Standby letters of credit A A 19,937A A A 19,393A A A $2,056,152A A $2,113,504A A 9.A A A DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES A We are exposed
to certain risks arising from both business operations and economic conditions. We principally manage the exposure to a wide variety of operational risks through core business activities.
Economic risks, including interest rate, liquidity and credit risk, are primarily administered via the amount, sources and duration of assets and liabilities. Derivative financial instruments may
also be used to assist in managing economic risks. A Derivatives not designated as hedges are not speculative and result from a service provided to certain commercial loan borrowers. We
execute interest rate swaps with commercial banking customers desiring longer-term fixed rate loans, while simultaneously entering into interest rate swaps with correspondent banks to offset
the impact of the interest rate swaps with the commercial banking customers. The net result is the desired floating rate loans and a minimization of the risk exposure of the interest rate swap
transactions. A As the interest rate swaps associated with this program do not meet the strict hedge accounting requirements, changes in the fair value of both the commercial banking
customer interest rate swaps and the offsetting interest rate swaps with the correspondent banks are recognized directly to earnings. Fees paid to us by the correspondent banks are recognized
as noninterest income on our Consolidated Statements of Income on the settlement date. A (Continued) A 37 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 9. A A DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES (Contlnued) A The fair values of derivative 1nstruments as of June 30, 2024,

AAAAAAAAA Interest rate swaps A $822,106A Other Assets A $30,164AAAAAAAAAAA Derivative Liabilities AAAAAAA A A Interest rate swaps A A 820,536A Other Liabilities
A A 30,520A A The effect of interest rate swaps that are not designated as hedging instruments resulted in income of $0. 1A million during the first six months ofA 2024 that was recorded in
other noninterest expense on our Consolidated Statements of Income.A We have master netting arrangements with our correspondent banks that allow us to net receivables and payables. The
nettlng agreement also allows us to net related cash collateral received and transferred up to the fair value exposure amount. We have elected to not offset these transactions on the

swaps A $676, 526A Other Assets A $27,505AAAAAAAAAAA Derivative Liabilities AAAAAAAAA Interest rate swaps A A 674,499A Other Liabilities A A 27,964A A (Continued) A 38
Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 9.A A DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
(Continued) A The effect of interestA rate swaps that are not designated as hedging instruments resulted in expenseA of $0.1A million during the six months ended June 30, 2023A that was
recorded in other noninterest expense on our Consohdated Statements of Income. The netting of derivative instruments as ofA December 31 2023Ais presented in the following table A

A $27,505A A $5,175A A $14,010A A $8,320AAAAAAAAAA A A A A AAAA Derivative Liabilites AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Interest rate swaps
AA27,964AAA5,175A AA 3,120AAA19,669A A (Continued) A 39 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited) AAAA A 10.A A FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A The carrying amounts, estimated fair values and level within the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

were as follows as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023: A AA LevelinAA June 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 AAA Fair AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Value AA Carrying

AA FairAA Carrying . A A FairA (Dollars in thousands) A HlerarchyA A ValuesA A ValuesA A ValuesA A ValuesA Financial assets: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Cashand cash
equivalents A Level 1 A A $197,629A A $197,629A A $130,533A A $130,533A Securities available for sale A (1)A A A 647,907A A A 647,907A A A 617,092A A A 617,092A FHLBI stock
A (2)AAA 21,513A AA21,513A AA21,513A A A 21,513A Loans, net A Level 3 A A A 4,382,837A A A 4,346,871A A A 4,253,844A A A 4,191,644A Mortgage loans held for sale A Level 2

AAA22,126AAA22,466A AA 18,607A A A 19,027A Accrued interest receivable A Level 2 A A A 20,975A A A 20,975A A A 19,806A A A 19,806A Interest rate swaps A Level 2

AAA30,164AAA30,164AAA27,505AAA27,50AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Financial liabilities: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Dep051tsALevel

2A A A 4,146,574A A A 4,030,366A A A 3,900, 918A A A 3,814,778A Securities sold under agreements to repurchase . A Level 2 AAA221,898A A A 221,898A A A 229,734A A A 229,734A FHLBI
advances A Level 2A A A 427,083A A A 410,487A A A 467,910A A A 454,857A Subordinated debentures A Level 2A A A 49,987A A A 49,994A A A 49,644A A A 49,653A Subordinated notes

A Level 2A A A 89,143A A A 79,064A A A 88,971A A A 77,218A Accrued interest payable A Level 2 AA A 10,705A A A 10,705A A A 9,012A A A 9,012A Interest rate swaps A Level 2

A AA30,520A AA30,520AAA27,964A A A27,964A A A (1) See Note 11 for a description of the fair value hierarchy as well as a disclosure of levels for classes of financial assets and
liabilities. A (2) It is not practical to determine the fair value of FHLBI stock due to transferability restrictions; therefore, fair value is estimated at carrying amount. A Carrying amount is the
estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, FHLBI stock, accrued interest receivable and payable, noninterest-bearing checking accounts and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase. Security fair values are based on market prices or dealer quotes, and if no such information is available, on the rate and term of the security and information about the issuer. Fair
value for loans is based on an exit price model as required by ASU 2016-01, taking into account inputs such as discounted cash flows, probability of default and loss given default assumptions.
The fair value for deposit accounts other than noninterest-bearing checking accounts is based on discounted cash flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life. The fair value of
mortgage servicing rights is estimated using a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated future net servicing cash flows, taking into consideration expected mortgage loan
prepayment rates, discount rates, servicing costs and other economic factors, which are determined based on current market conditions. The fair values of subordinated debentures,
subordinated notes, and FHLBI advances are based on current rates for similar financing. The fair values of interest rate swaps are based on discounted cash flows using forecasted yield
curves, along with insignificant unobservable inputs, such as borrower credit spreads. The fair value of other off-balance sheet items is estimated to be nominal. A (Continued) A 40 Table of
Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) AAAA A 11.AA FAIR VALUES A Fair value is defined as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The price of the
principal (or most advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability is not adjusted for transaction costs. An orderly transaction is a transaction that assumes
exposure to the market for a period prior to the measurement date to allow for marketing activities that are usual and customary for transactions involving such assets and liabilities; it is not a
forced transaction. Market participants are buyers and sellers in the principal market that are (i) independent, (ii) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transact and (iv) willing to transact. A We are
required to use valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts, such as cash
flows or earnings, to a single present amount on a discounted basis. The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset
(replacement cost). Valuation techniques should be consistently applied. Inputs to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability. Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from independent
sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect our own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information
available in the circumstances. In that regard, we utilize a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows: A Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that we
have the ability to access as of the measurement date. A Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be derived from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means. A Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect our own conclusions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or
liability. A The following is a description of our valuation methodologies used to measure and disclose the fair values of our financial assets and liabilities that are recorded at fair value on a
recurring or nonrecurring basis: A Securities available for sale. Securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based on quoted prices, if
available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing models. Level 2 securities include U.S. Government agency debt obligations, mortgage-backed
securities issued or guaranteed by U.S. Government agencies, and municipal general obligation and revenue bonds. Level 3 securities include bonds issued by certain relatively small
municipalities located within our markets that have very limited marketability due to their size and lack of ratings from a recognized rating service. We carry these bonds at historical cost,
which we believe approximates fair value, unless our periodic financial analysis or other information that becomes known to us necessitates an impairment. There was no such impairment as of
June 30, 2024, or December 31, 2023. We have no Level 1 securities available for sale. A Derivatives. We measure fair value utilizing models that use primarily market observable inputs, such
as forecasted yield curves. Insignificant unobservable inputs, such as borrower credit spreads, are also utilized. A (Continued) A 41 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 11.A A FAIR VALUES (Continued) A Mortgage loans held for sale. Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in
the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market, as determined by outstanding commitments from investors, and are measured on a nonrecurring basis. Fair value is
based on independent quoted market prices, where applicable, or the prices for other mortgage whole loans with similar characteristics. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, we
determined the fair value of our mortgage loans held for sale to be $22.5A million and $19.0 million, respectively. A Loans. We do not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However,
from time to time, we record nonrecurring fair value adjustments to collateral dependent loans to reflect partial write-downs or specific reserves that are based on the observable market price
or current estimated value of the collateral. These loans are reported in the nonrecurring table below at initial recognition of significant borrower distress and on an ongoing basis until recovery
or charge-off. The fair values of distressed loans are determined using either the sales comparison approach or income approach; respective unobservable inputs for the approaches consist of
adjustments for differences between comparable sales and the utilization of appropriate capitalization rates. A Foreclosed Assets. At time of foreclosure or repossession, foreclosed and
repossessed assets are adjusted to fair value less costs to sell upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed and repossessed assets, establishing a new cost basis. We subsequently adjust estimated
fair value of foreclosed assets on a nonrecurring basis to reflect write-downs based on revised fair value estimates. The fair values of parcels of other real estate owned are determined using
either the sales comparison approach or income approach; respective unobservable inputs for the approaches consist of adjustments for differences between comparable sales and the



A $427,882A A $0A A $427 882A A $0A Mortgage- -backed securities A A 26,978A A A 0A A A 26,978A A A 0A Mun1c1pal general obligation bonds A A164,306AAA0AAA163,861A A A 445A
Municipal revenue bonds A A28241AAA0AAA28241A A A 0OA Other investments A A 500A A A 0A A A 500A A A OA Interest rate swaps A A30,164A A A 0AAA30,164A A A OA Total
assets A $678,071A A $0A A $677,626A A $445AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Interest rate swaps A A 30,520A A A 0A A A 30,520A A A 0A Total liabilities

A $30, 520A A $0A A $30,520A A $0A A (Continued) A 42 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A
11.A A FAIR VALUES (Continued) A There were no sales, purchases or transfers in or out of Level 3 during theA six months ended June 30, 2024. TheA $0.1 million reduction in Level 3

municipal general obhgatlon bonds durmg theA six months ended June 30, 2024A reflects the scheduled maturities of such bonds. A The balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(Dollars in thousands) A TotalA A (Level 1)A A (Level 2)A (Level 3)A Available for sale securities AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA U.S. Government agency debt obligations o R
A $390,496A A $0A A $390, 496A A $0A Mortgage-backed securities AA29,473AAA0AAA29473AAA0OA Municipal general obligation bonds AA167,860AAA0AAA167,347A AA513A

Mun1c1pal revenue bonds A A 28,763A A A 0A A”A”ch} 763AAA OHAH Qt]}eg investments A A500AAAO0AAAS500AAAOA Interest rate swaps. A A27,505AAA0AAA27,505AAAO0A Total
assets A $644, 597A A $0A A $644, 084A A $513AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Interest rate swaps A A 27,964A A A0A A A27,964A A A OA Total liabilities
A $27,964A A $0A A $27,964A A $0A A There were no sales, purchases or transfers in or out of Level 3 during 2023. TheA $0.1A million reduction in Level 3 municipal general obligation bonds

duringA 2023 reﬂects the scheduled maturities of such bonds. A Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a N onrecurrmg Basis A The balances of assets and 11ab111t1es measured at fair

A TotalA A (Level 1)A A (Level 2)A A (Level 3)A AA A A A AAAAAAAAAAA A Collateral dependent loans A $1,345A A $0A A $0A A $1,345A Foreclosed assets

AAOAAAOAAAOAAAOA Total A $1,345A A $0A A $0A A $1,345A A (Continued) A 43 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 11.A A FAIR VALUES (Contlnued) A The balances of assets and hablhtles measured at falr value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2023 are as

AAA A AAA Identical AA Observable AA Unobservable AAAAAAA Assets AA Inputs AA Inputs A (Dollars in thousands) A TotalA A (Level 1)A A (Level 2)A A (Level
3)AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Collateral dependent loans A $1,434A A $0A A $0A A $1,434A Foreclosed assets A A 200A A A 0AAA 0A A A200A Total

A $1,634A A $0A A $0A A $1,634A A The carrying values are based on the estimated value of the property or other assets. Fair value estimates of collateral on nonperforming loans and
foreclosed assets are reviewed periodically. Our credit policies establish criteria for obtaining appraisals and determining internal value estimates. We may also adjust outside appraisals and
internal evaluations based on identifiable trends within our markets, such as sales of similar properties or assets, listing prices and offers received. In addition, we may discount certain
appraised and internal value estimates to address current distressed market conditions. We generally assign a discount factor range of 25% to 35% for commercial real estate dependent loans
and foreclosed assets, and a discount factor range of 25% to 50% for residential-related properties. In a vast majority of cases, we assign a 10% discount factor for estimated selling costs. A
12.A A REGULATORY MATTERS A We are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. Capital adequacy guidelines and prompt corrective action
regulations involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also
subject to qualitative judgments by regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors, and the regulators can lower classifications in certain cases. Failure to meet various capital
requirements can initiate regulatory action that could have a direct material effect on the financial statements. A The prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications, including
well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although these terms are not used to represent overall financial
condition. If an institution is not well capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits. Subject to limited exceptions, no institution may make a capital distribution if,
after making the distribution, it would be undercapitalized. If an institution is undercapitalized, it is subject to close monitoring by its principal federal regulator, its asset growth and expansion
are restricted, and plans for capital restoration are required. In addition, further specific types of restrictions may be imposed on the institution at the discretion of the federal regulator. As of
June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, our bank was in the well capitalized category under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or events since June
30, 2024, that we believe have changed our banka€™ s categorization. A (Contlnued) A 44 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 12.A A REGULATORY MA’ITERS (Continued) A Our actual capital levelsA and the minimum levels required to be categonzed as adequately and well capitalized

A A Amount A A Ratio A June 30,2024 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Total capital (to risk weighted assets) AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Consolidated

A $748,097A A A 14.1%A $424,553A AA 8.0%AA $ NAAAA NA% A Bank A A 730,638A A A 13.9A A A 421,594A A A 8.0A A A 526,992A A A 10.0% Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets)

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Consolidated A A 602,835AAA 11.4AAA318,415AAA6.0AA NAAA NAA Bank
AA674519AAA12.8AAA316,196AA A 6.0AAA421,594A A A 8.0A Common equity tier 1 (to risk weighted assets) AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Consolidated
AA554,922A AA10.5AAA238812AAA4.5AA NAAA NAA Bank AA674,519AAA 12.8A A A 237,147A A A 4.5A A A 342,545A A A 6.5A Tier 1 capital (to average assets)
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA cOnsohdatedAAﬁog §3§/§1§/§ 1A0A91§1§1§22A2 ;9@5554 QAHAHI\HIAAAAAA NAA Bank

AA694,431AAA13.4AAA414,019AAA80AAA517,524A A A 10.0A Tier 1 capital (to risk welghted assets) AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Consolidated

AA570,730AAA11.0AAA311,881AAA6.0AA NAAA NAA BankA A 643,227AAA12.4AAA310,514AAA6.0AAA414,019A A A 8.0A Common equity tier 1 (to risk weighted assets)

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Consolidated A A 523,160AA A 10.1A A A 233,911AAA4.5AA NAAA NAA Bank

AA643,227A AA12.4AAA232,886A A A4.5A AA336,391A A A6.5A Tier 1 capital (to average assets) AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Consolidated

A A570,730AA A 10.8AAA210,527AAA4.0AA NAAA NAA Bank A A 643,227A A A 12.2A A A210,427A A A 4.0A A A 263,034AAA5.0A A (Continued) A 45 Table of Contents
MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) A A 12.A A REGULATORY MATTERS (Continued) A Our consolidated capital levels
as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 include $47.9 million and $47.6 million, respectively, of trust preferred securities. Under applicable Federal Reserve guidelines, the trust preferred
securities constitute a restricted core capital element. The guidelines provide that the aggregate amount of restricted core elements that may be included in our Tier 1 capital must not exceed
25% of the sum of all core capital elements, including restricted core capital elements, net of goodwill less any associated deferred tax liability. Our ability to include the trust preferred
securities in Tier 1 capital in accordance with the guidelines is not affected by the provision of the Dodd-Frank Act generally restricting such treatment, because (i) the trust preferred securities
were issued before May 19, 2010, and (ii) our total consolidated assets as of December 31, 2009 were less than $15.0 billion. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, all $47.9 million and
$47.6 million, respectively, of the trust preferred securities were included in our consolidated Tier 1 capital. A Under the final BASEL III capital rules that became effective on January 1, 2015,
there is a requirement for a common equity Tier 1 capital conservation buffer of 2.5% of risk-weighted assets which is in addition to the other minimum risk-based capital standards in the rule.
Institutions that do not meet this required capital buffer will become subject to progressively more stringent limitations on the percentage of earnings that can be paid out in cash dividends or
used for stock repurchases and on the payment of discretionary bonuses to senior executive management. The capital buffer requirement was phased in over three years beginning in 2016. The
capital buffer requirement raised the minimum required common equity Tier 1 capital ratio to 7.0%, the Tier 1 capital ratio to 8.5% and the total capital ratio to 10.5% on a fully phased-in basis
on January 1, 2019. We believe that, as of June 30, 2024, our bank meets all capital adequacy requirements under the BASEL III capital rules on a fully phased-in basis. A Our and our

bankd€™ s ability to pay cash and stock dividends is subject to limitations under various laws and regulations and to prudent and sound banking practices. On January 11, 2024, our Board of
Directors declared a cash dividend on our common stock in the amount of $0.35A per share that was paid on March 13, 2024A to shareholders of record as of March 1, 2024.A On April 11,
2024, our Board of Directors declared a cash dividend on our common stock in the amount of $0.35A per share that was paid on June 19, 2024, to shareholders of record as of June 7, 2024.A A
As of June 30, 2024, we had the ability to repurchase up to $6.8 million in common stock shares from time to time in open market transactions at prevailing market prices or by other means in
accordance with applicable regulations as part of a $20.0 million common stock repurchase program announced in May 2021. No shares were repurchased during the first six months ofA 2024.
Historically, stock repurchases have been funded from cash dividends paid to us from our bank. Additional repurchases may be made in future periods under the authorized plan or a new plan,
which would also likely be funded from cash dividends paid to us from our bank. The actual timing, number and value of shares repurchased will be determined by us in our discretion and will
depend on a number of factors, including the stock price, capital position, financial performance, general market and economic conditions, alternative uses of capital and applicable legal
requirements. A 13.A A SUBSEQUENT EVENTS A On July 11, 2024, our Board of Directors declared a cash dividend on our common stock in the amount of $0.36A per share that will be paid
on September 18, 2024, to shareholders of record as of September 6, 2024. A A A A 46 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Item 2.A A Management&€™s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations A Forward Looking Statements This report contains forward-looking statements that are based on managementa€™s beliefs,
assumptions, current expectations, estimates and projections about the financial services industry, the economy, and our company. Words such as &€ceanticipates,a€ a€oebelieves,a€
a€mestimates,a€ a€ceexpects,a€ a€oeintends,a€ d€ceplans,a€ d€mprojects,a€ a€ceindicates,a€ a€cestrategy,a€ a€oefuture,a€ a€mlikely,a€ a€cemay,a€ a€oeshould,a€ a€cewill,a€ and variations
of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks,
uncertainties and assumptions (a€ceFuture Factorsa€) that are difficult to predict with regard to timing, extent, likelihood and degree of occurrence. Therefore, actual results and outcomes may
materially differ from what may be expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update, amend, or clarify forward-looking statements, whether as
a result of new information, future events (whether anticipated or unanticipated), or otherwise. A Future Factors include, among others, adverse changes in interest rates and interest rate
relationships; increasing rates of inflation and slower growth rates or recession; significant declines in the value of commercial real estate; market volatility; demand for products and services;
climate impacts; labor markets; the degree of competition by traditional and non-traditional financial services companies; changes in banking regulation or actions by bank regulators; changes
in tax laws and other laws and regulations applicable to us; changes in prices, levies, and assessments; the impact of technological advances; potential cyber-attacks, information security
breaches, and other criminal activities; litigation liabilities; governmental and regulatory policy changes; the outcomes of existing or future contingencies; trends in customer behavior as well as
their ability to repay loans; changes in local real estate values; damage to our reputation resulting from adverse publicity, regulatory actions, litigation, operational failures, and the failure to
meet client expectations and other facts; the transition from Libor to SOFR; changes in the national and local economies; unstable political and economic environments; disease outbreaks, such
as the Covid-19 pandemic or similar public health threats, and measures implemented to combat them; and other risk factors, including those described in our annual report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2023. These are representative of the Future Factors that could cause a difference between an ultimate actual outcome and a forward-looking statement. A
Introduction The following discussion compares the financial condition of Mercantile Bank Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, includingA Mercantile Community Partners, LLC
("MCP") and Mercantile Bank (4€ceour banka€) and its subsidiaries, includingA Mercantile Insurance Center, Inc.A at June 30, 2024 andA December 31, 2023 and the results of operations for
theA six months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the interim consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in this report.
Unless the text clearly suggests otherwise, references in this report to &€ceus,a€ a€cewe,a€ a€oeoura€ or a€cethe companya€ include Mercantile Bank Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries referred to above. A Critical Accounting PoliciesA Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (4€ceGAAPA€) are complex and require us to apply
significant judgment to various accounting, reporting and disclosure matters. We must use assumptions and estimates to apply these principles where actual measurements are not possible or
practical. This Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with our unaudited financial statements included in this
report. For a discussion of our significant accounting estimates, see Note 1 of the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2023 (Commission file number 000-26719). Our critical accounting policies are highly dependent upon subjective or complex judgments, assumptions and estimates. Changes in such
estimates may have a significant impact on the financial statements, and actual results may differ from those estimates. We have reviewed the application of these policies with the Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors. A A 47 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Allowance for Credit Losses (a€ceallowancea€): The allowance is maintained at a
level we believe is adequate to absorb estimated credit losses identified and expectedA in the loan portfolio. Our evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is an estimate based on historical
credit loss experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, information about specific borrower situations and estimated collateral values, guidance from bank regulatory agencies, and
assessments of the impact of current and anticipated economic conditions on the loan portfolio. Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available
for any loan that, in our judgment, should be charged-off. Credit losses are charged against the allowance when we believe the uncollectability of a loan is likely. The balance of the allowance
represents our best estimate, but significant downturns in circumstances relating to loan quality or economic conditions could result in a requirement for an increased allowance in the future.
Likewise, an upturn in loan quality or improved economic conditions may result in a decline in the required allowance in the future. In either instance, unanticipated changes could have a
significant impact on the allowance and operating results. The allowance is increased through a provision charged to operating expense. Uncollectable loans are charged-off through the
allowance, while recoveries of loans previously charged-off are added to the allowance. A See Note 1- Significant Accounting Policies in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further detailed
descriptions of our estimation process and methodology related to the allowance. See also Note 3 &€“ Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further
information regarding our loan portfolio and allowance. A Mortgage Servicing Rights: Mortgage servicing rights are recognized as assets based on the allocated fair value of retained servicing
rights on loans sold. Servicing rights are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value and are expensed in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing income. We utilize
a discounted cash flow model to determine the value of our servicing rights. The valuation model utilizes mortgage loan prepayment speeds, the remaining life of the mortgage loan pool,
delinquency rates, our cost to service loans, and other factors to determine the cash flow that we will receive from servicing each grouping of loans. These cash flows are then discounted based
on current interest rate assumptions to arrive at the fair value of the right to service those loans. Impairment is evaluated quarterly based on the fair value of the servicing rights, using
groupings of the underlying loans classified by interest rates. Any impairment of a grouping is reported as a valuation allowance. A Goodwill: Accounting rules require us to determine the fair



value of all the assets and liabilities of an acquired entity, and to record their fair value on the date of acquisition. We employ a variety of means in determining fair value, including the use of
discounted cash flow analysis, market comparisons and projected future revenue streams. For those items for which we conclude that we have the appropriate expertise to determine fair value,
we may choose to use our own calculation of fair value. In other cases, where the fair value is not readily determined, consultation with outside parties is used to determine fair value. Once
valuations have been determined, the net difference between the price paid for the acquired entity and the fair value of the balance sheet is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill is assessed at least
annually for impairment, with any such impairment recognized in the period identified. A more frequent assessment is performed if there are material changes in the market place or within the
organizational structure. A A 48 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Financial Overview We reported net income of $18.8A million, or $1.17A per diluted share, for
the second quarter of 2024, compared with net income of $20.4A million, or $1.27A per diluted share, during the second quarter of 2023.A Net income during the first six months of 2024
totaled $40.3 million, or $2.50 per diluted share, compared to $41.3 million, or $2.58 per diluted share, during the first six months of 2023. A While noninterest income increased during both
periods, net income was negatively impacted by higher provisions for credit losses and increased noninterest expenses.A Net interest income levels were relatively similar in both comparable
periods. A Commercial loans increased $118 million during the first six months of 2024, providing for an annualized growth rate of about 7%.A Multi-family and residential rental property
loans increased $56.8 million, in large part reflecting draws on multi-family construction loans, while non-owner occupied commercial real estate (2€ceCRE4€) loans grew $23.4 million, and
commercial and industrial loans increased $21.2 million.A As a percent of total commercial loans, commercial and industrial loans and owner occupied CRE loans combined equaled 56.8% as of
June 30, 2024, compared to 57.7% at December 31, 2023.A The commercial loan pipeline remains strong, and as of June 30, 2024, we had $320 million in unfunded loan commitments on
commercial construction and development loans that are in the construction phase. A A Residential mortgage loans increased $12.2 million during the first six months of 2024, representing an
annualized growth rate of about 3%.A Residential mortgage loan originations totaled $203 million during the first six months of 2024, of which almost 75% were originated with the intent to
sell. A The overall quality of our loan portfolio remains strong, with nonperforming loans equaling 0.21% of total loans as of June 30, 2024. A Accruing loans past due 30 to 89 days remain very
low, and we had no foreclosed properties at quarter end.A Gross loan charge-offs totaled less than $0.1 million during the first six months of 2024, while recoveries of prior period loan charge-
offs aggregated $0.7 million. A We recorded a provision expense of $3.5 million and $4.8 million during the second quarter and first six months of 2024, respectively.A The second quarter
2024 provision expense primarily reflects a specific allocation associated with a nonperforming nonreal-estate-related commercial loan relationship and allocations necessitated by net loan
growth, which were partially mitigated by lower baseline reserve allocations stemming from ongoing low levels of loan charge-offs.A The first six monthsa€™ provision expense also includes a
specific allocation recorded during the first quarter of 2024 for a different nonperforming nonreal-estate-related commercial loan relationship. A A 49 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK
CORPORATION A A Interest-earning deposits, a vast majority of which is comprised of funds on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago, averaged $166 million during the first six
months of 2024, compared to $48.1 million during the first six months of 2023.A The higher average balance primarily reflects an increase in deposits and our desire to maintain higher levels
of on balance sheet liquidity. A Total deposits increased $246 million during the first six months of 2024, providing for an annualized growth rate of about 13%.A Growth in money market
deposit accounts and local time deposits more than offset a reduction in business noninterest-bearing checking accounts reflecting the customary level of customersa€™ tax and bonus
payments and partnership distributions during the early part of each first quarter.A Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis (4€ceFHLBIA€) advances declined $40.8 million during the first six
months of 2024.A Wholesale funds, comprised of out-of-area deposits and FHLBI advances, totaled $580 million, or about 12% of total funds, as of June 30, 2024. A Net interest income
declined $0.5 million and $1.5 million during the second quarter and first six months of 2024, respectively, compared to the same prior-year time periods, reflecting the net impact of $13.0
million and $29.2 million increases in interest income and $13.5 million and $30.7 million increases in interest expense, during the respective periods.A Our net interest margin declined 42
basis points and 48 basis points during the second quarter and first six months of 2024, respectively, compared to the same prior-year time periods.A Although our yield on earning assets
increased 46 basis points and 58 basis points, respectively, during those time periods, our cost of funds was up 88 basis points and 106 basis points, respectively.A While we experienced rapid
growth in our earning asset yield during the period of March of 2022 through July of 2023 when the Federal Open Market Committee (4€ceFOMCA€) raised the targeted federal funds rate by
525 basis points, meaningful increases in our cost of funds did not begin to materialize until the latter part of 2022 when competition for deposit balances increased deposit rates, and
depositors began to move funds from no- and lower-costing deposit types to higher-costing deposit products.A Our net interest margin peaked during the latter part of 2022 and early stages of
2023. A Noninterest income totaled $9.7 million and $20.5 million during the second quarter and first six months of 2024, respectively, compared to $7.6 million and $14.6 million during the
second quarter and first six months of 2023, respectively.A The higher level of noninterest income during both time periods primarily stemmed from increases in service charges on deposit
accounts, primarily reflecting growth in treasury management fees, and mortgage banking income.A Growth in interest rate swap income benefited noninterest income during both time
periods, whileA revenue associated with a private equity investment positively impacted noninterest income during the first six months of 2024. Benefit claims on bank owned life insurance
policies were recorded during the first quarter of 2024. A Noninterest expense totaled $29.7 million and $59.7 million during the second quarter and first six months of 2024, respectively,
compared to $27.8 million and $56.4 million during the second quarter and first six months of 2023, respectively.A The higher level of noninterest expense primarily resulted from increased
compensation and benefit costs along with higher data processing expenses.A Contributions to The Mercantile Bank Foundation ("Foundation") totaled $0.7 million during the first six months
of 2024. A A 50 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Financial Condition Our total assets increased $249 million during the first six months of 2024, and totaled $5.60
billion as of June 30, 2024.A Total loans increased $134 million, interest-earning deposits were up $75.6 million and securities available for sale grew $30.8 million.A Total deposits increased
$246 million, while FHLBI advances decreased $40.8 million during the first six months of 2024. A Commercial loans increased $118 million during the first six months of 2024, providing for an
annualized growth rate of about 7%.A Multi-family and residential rental property loans increased $56.8 million, in large part reflecting draws on multi-family construction loans, while non-
owner occupied CRE loans grew $23.4 million, and commercial and industrial loans increased $21.2 million.A Asa percent of total commercial loans, commercial and industrial loans and owner
occupied CRE loans combined equaled 56.8% as of June 30, 2024, compared to 57.7% at December 31, 2023.A Commercial loans totaled $3.53 billion, or 79.6% of total loans, as of June 30,
2024, compared to $3.42 billion, or 79.4% of total loans, as of December 31, 2023. A As of June 30, 2024, we had $320 million in unfunded loan commitments on commercial construction and
development loans that are in the construction phase, which we expect to be drawn over the next 12 to 18 months.A Our current pipeline reports indicate continued strong commercial loan
funding opportunities in future periods, including approximately $255 million in new lending commitments, a majority of which we expect to be accepted and funded over the next 12 to 18
months.A Our commercial bankers also report ongoing additional opportunities they are currently discussing with existing and potentially new borrowers.A We remain committed to prudent
underwriting standards that provide for an appropriate yield and risk relationship, as well as concentration limits we have established within our commercial loan portfolio.A Usage of existing
commercial lines of credit averaged about 40% during the first six months of 2024, unchanged from the average during all of 2023. A Residential mortgage loans increased $12.2 million during
the first six months of 2024, representing an annualized growth rate of about 3%.A Residential mortgage loan originations totaled $203 million during the first six months of 2024, of which
almost 75% were originated with the intent to sell.A Residential mortgage loan originations totaled $190 million during the first six months of 2023, of which about 40% were originated with
the intent to sell.A In mid-2023, we altered our residential mortgage loan pricing strategy to encourage borrowers to select fixed rate residential mortgage loan products that we could sell
rather than selecting adjustable rate residential mortgage loan products that we had to fund on our balance sheet.A The strategy not only provided for less residential mortgage loans being
funded on our balance sheet, but also resulted in higher mortgage banking income. A Other consumer-related loans totaled $55.3 million, or 1.2% of total loans, at June 30, 2024, compared to
$51.1 million, or 1.1% of total loans, as of December 31, 2023.A We expect this loan portfolio segment to remain relatively stable in dollar amount but decline as a percentage of total loans in
future periods as the commercial loan segment grows. A A 51 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Our credit policies establish guidelines to manage credit risk and
asset quality.A These guidelines include loan review and early identification of problem loans to provide effective loan portfolio administration.A The credit policies and procedures are meant
to minimize the risk and uncertainties inherent in lending.A In following these policies and procedures, we must rely on estimates, appraisals and evaluations of loans and the possibility that
changes in these could occur quickly because of changing economic conditions or other factors.A Identified problem loans, which exhibit characteristics (financial or otherwise) that could cause
the loans to become nonperforming or require modification in the future, are included on an internal watch list. Senior management and the Board of Directors review this list regularly.A
Market value estimates of collateral on nonperforming loans, as well as on foreclosed and repossessed assets, are reviewed periodically.A We also have a process in place to monitor whether
value estimates at each quarter-end are reflective of current market conditions.A Our credit policies establish criteria for obtaining appraisals and determining internal value estimates.A We
may also adjust outside and internal valuations based on identifiable trends within our markets, such as recent sales of similar properties or assets, listing prices and offers received.A In
addition, we may discount certain appraised and internal value estimates to address distressed market conditions. A Nonperforming loans totaled $9.1 million, or 0.2% of total loans, as of June
30, 2024, compared to $3.4 million, or 0.1% of total loans, as of December 31, 2023.A Nonperforming assets, comprised of nonaccrual loans, loans past due 90 days or more and accruing
interest and foreclosed properties, totaled $9.1 million (0.2% of total assets) as of June 30, 2024, compared to $3.6 million (0.1% of total assets) as of December 31, 2023.A The volume of
nonperforming assets has remained under 0.3% of total assets since year-end 2015.A Given the low levels of nonperforming loans and accruing loans 30 to 89 days delinquent, combined with
what we believe are strong credit administration practices, we are pleased with the overall quality of the loan portfolio.A A During the first six months of 2024, loan charge-offs totaled less
than $0.1 million, while recoveries of prior period loan charge-offs equaled $0.7 million.A We continue our collection efforts on charged-off loans and expect to record recoveries in future
periods; however, given the nature of these efforts, it is not practical to forecast the dollar amount and timing of the recoveries.A A The primary risk elements with respect to commercial loans
are the financial condition of the borrower, the sufficiency of collateral, and timeliness of scheduled payments.A We have a policy of requesting and reviewing periodic financial statements from
commercial loan customers, and we have a disciplined and formalized review of the existence of collateral and its value.A The primary risk element with respect to each residential mortgage
loan and consumer loan is the timeliness of scheduled payments.A We have a reporting system that monitors past due loans and have adopted policies to pursue creditorsa€™ rights in order to
preserve our collateral position. A See Note 1- Significant Accounting Policies in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further detailed descriptions of our estimation process and methodology
related to the allowance.A See also Note 3 4€“ Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further information regarding our loan portfolio and allowance.
A A 52 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A The allowance equaled $55.4 million, or 1.25% of total loans and 607% of nonperforming loans, as of June 30, 2024.A As of
June 30, 2024, the allowance was comprised of $49.1 million in general reserves relating to performing loans and $6.3 million in specific reserves on other loans, primarily nonperforming
loans.A Loans with an aggregate carrying value of $0.3 million as of June 30, 2024 had been subject to previous partial charge-offs aggregating $0.3 million over the past several years.A As of
June 30, 2024, there were no specific reserves allocated to loans that had been subject to a previous partial charge-off. A Although we believe the allowance is adequate to absorb loan losses in
our loan portfolio as they arise, there can be no assurance that we will not sustain loan losses in any given period that could be substantial in relation to, or greater than, the size of the
allowance. A The following table reflects the composition of our allowance for credit losses, nonaccrual loans, and net charge-offs as of and for theA six months ended June 30, 2024. A (Dollars
in thousands) A Allowance for Credit Losses A A Total Loans A A Allowance for Credit Losses to Total Loans A A Nonaccrual Loans A A Nonaccrual Loans to Total Loans A A Allowance for

Credit Losses to Nonaccrual Loans A A Net Charge-Offs A A Annualized Net Charge-Offs to Average LoansA A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAARAAAA
A A A Commercia: A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A Commercial and industrial A $ 13,215A A $1,275,745A A A 1.04 %A $6,840 A
AA054%A A 19320%A $(298)A A (0.05)% Vacant land, land development and residential construction A A 393A A A 76,247A A A 052A AA0AAAO0AANAAAA@3)
A A (0.01) Real estate ae” oyvnAeerccupledA AA7A190 AAAAAA732184A41§ A A 998A AAOAAAOAANAAAA (159)A AA(0;04)RealAesAta§e ae” non-owner occupied A A 10,249 A
A A 1,059,0653A A A 097A A AO0OAAAO0OAANAAAAOAA A 0.00A Real estate 4€“ multi- -family and residential rental A A 3,589 A A A 389,390 A A 0.92A AAO0AAA
0A A NAA A A (8)A A (0.00) Total commercial A A 34,636 A A A 3,533,279A A A 098A A A 6,840A A A 0.19A A A 506.37A A A 468)A A (0.03)AAAAAAAAAA
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAARetall AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 14familymortgagesA A 18513 A A
A 849,625A A A 218A A A 2183A A A 026A A A 848.05A A A (96)A A (0.02) Other consumer A A 2,250 A A A 55341 A A A 4.07A A A 106A A A019A ANAAAA
(130)A A (0.49) Total retail A A 20,763 A A A 904,966 A A A 229A A A 22890A A A 025A A A 907.08A A A 226)A A (005)AAAAAAAAAAA A AAAAAAA
AAAAAAAAAAAAAA UnallocatedA A9AAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOAAAOO00A Total A $55408A A $4,438245A A A 1.25%A $9,129

AAA021%A A 606.94%A $(694)A A (0.03)% A A 53 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Securities available for sale increased $30.8 million during the first
six months of 2024, totaling $648 million as of June 30, 2024.A Purchases of U.S. Government agency bonds during the first six months of 2024 aggregated $46.0 million, while proceeds from
maturities totaled $10.0 million.A There were no purchases of U.S. Government agency guaranteed mortgage-backed securities during the first six months of 2024, while proceeds from
principal paydowns aggregated $1.6 million.A Purchases of municipal bonds totaled $11.6 million during the first six months of 2024, while proceeds from matured municipal bonds aggregated
$11.6 million.A At June 30, 2024, the portfolio was primarily comprised of U.S. Government agency bonds (66%), municipal bonds (30%) and U.S. Government agency guaranteed mortgage-
backed securities (4%).A All of our securities are currently designated as available for sale, and are therefore stated at fair value.A The fair value of securities designated as available for sale
at June 30, 2024 totaled $648 million, including a net unrealized loss of $67.4 million.A The net unrealized loss equaled $63.9 million as of December 31, 2023.A After we considered whether
the securities were issued by the federal government or its agencies and whether downgrades by bond rating agencies had occurred, we determined that the unrealized losses were due to
changing interest rate environments.A A We maintain the securities portfolio at levels to provide adequate pledging and secondary liquidity for our daily operations.A In addition, the securities
portfolio serves a primary interest rate risk management function.A We expect any upcoming purchases to generally consist of U.S. Government agency bonds and municipal bonds, with the
securities portfolio maintained at about 12% to 15% of total assets. A Market values on our U.S. Government agency bonds, mortgage-backed securities issued or guaranteed by U.S.
Government agencies and municipal bonds are generally determined on a monthly basis with the assistance of a third-party vendor.A Evaluated pricing models that vary by type of security and
incorporate available market data are utilized. Standard inputs include issuer and type of security, benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes and issuer spreads.A The market
value of certain non-rated securities issued by relatively small municipalities generally located within our markets is estimated at carrying value.A We believe our valuation methodology
provides for a reasonable estimation of market value, and that it is consistent with the requirements of accounting guidelines. A FHLBI stock totaled $21.5 million as of June 30, 2024,
unchanged from December 31, 2023.A Our investment in FHLBI stock is necessary to engage in the FHLBI4€™s advance and other financing programs.A We have regularly received quarterly
cash dividends, and we expect a cash dividend will continue to be paid in future quarterly periods. A Interest-earning deposits, a vast majority of which is comprised of funds on deposit with the
Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago, averaged $166 million during the first six months of 2024, compared to $48.1 million during the first six months of 2023.A The higher average balance
primarily reflects an increase in deposits and our desire to maintain higher levels of on balance sheet liquidity.A Historically, we have maintained interest-earning deposits at approximately
$75.0 million. A Net premises and equipment equaled $50.2 million at June 30, 2024, compared to $50.9 million as of December 31, 2023.A Depreciation expense totaled $3.1 million during
the first six months of 2024, while investments associated with renovations of existing facilities totaled $2.4 million. A A 54 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Total
deposits increased $246 million during the first six months of 2024, providing for an annualized growth rate of about 13%.A Growth in money market deposit accounts and local time deposits
more than offset a reduction in business noninterest-bearing checking accounts reflecting the customary level of customersa€™ tax and bonus payments and partnership distributions during the
early part of each first quarter.A Wholesale funds, comprised of out-of-area deposits and FHLBI advances, totaled $580 million, or about 12% of total funds, as of June 30, 2024, compared to



$636 million, or about 14% of total funds, as of December 31, 2023. A Noninterest-bearing deposits decreased $128 million during the first six months of 2024, in large part reflecting the
aforementioned customary level of customersa€™ tax and bonus payments and partnership distributions in early 2024.A Interest-bearing checking accounts increased $6.1 million, and savings
deposits were down $16.0 million.A Money market deposit accounts increased $311 million, and time deposits were up $71.9 million, primarily reflecting growth in deposits from existing
customers and initial deposits from new customers. A Uninsured deposits totaled approximately $2.0 billion, or 49% of total deposits, as of June 30, 2024, compared to approximately $1.9
billion, or 48% of total deposits, as of December 31, 2023.A The uninsured amounts are estimates based on the methodologies and assumptions we use for regulatory reporting requirements. A
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (4€cesweep accountsa€) decreased $7.8 million during the first six months of 2024, totaling $222 million as of June 30, 2024.A The aggregate
balance of sweep accounts is subject to relatively large daily fluctuations given the nature of the customers utilizing this product and the sizable balances that many of the customers maintain.A
The average balance of sweep accounts equaled $221 million during the first six months of 2024, with a high balance of $258 million and a low balance of $166 million.A Our sweep account
program entails transferring collected funds from certain business noninterest-bearing checking accounts and savings deposits into overnight interest-bearing repurchase agreements.A Such
sweep accounts are not deposit accounts and are not afforded federal deposit insurance, and are accounted for as secured borrowings. A All of our repurchase agreements are accounted for as
secured borrowings. A FHLBI advances decreased $40.8 million during the first six months of 2024, totaling $427 million as of June 30, 2024. A Bullet advances aggregating $10.0 million were
obtained during the first six months of 2024, while bullet advance maturities aggregated $50.0 million.A Payments on amortizing FHLBI advances totaled $0.8 million. Bullet FHLBI advances
are generally obtained to provide funds for loan growth and are used to assist in managing interest rate risk, while amortizing FHLBI advances are generally acquired to match-fund specific
longer-term fixed rate commercial loans, with the dollar amount and amortization structure of the underlying advances reflective of the associated commercial loans.A FHLBI advances are
collateralized by residential mortgage loans, first mortgage liens on multi-family residential property loans, first mortgage liens on commercial real estate property loans, and substantially all
other assets of our bank, under a blanket lien arrangement.A Our borrowing line of credit as of June 30, 2024 totaled $1.01 billion, with remaining availability based on collateral equaling $576
million. A Shareholdersa€™ equity increased $29.0 million during the first six months of 2024, equaling $551 million at June 30, 2024.A Positively impacting shareholdersa€™ equity during the
first six months of 2024 was net income of $40.3 million, which was partially offset by the payment of cash dividends totaling $11.1 million.A Activity relating to the issuance and sale of
common stock through various stock-based compensation programs and our dividend reinvestment plan positively impacted shareholdersa€™ equity by $2.5 million.A A $2.8 million after-tax
decrease in the market value of our available for sale securities portfolio, reflecting an increase in market interest rates, negatively impacted shareholdersa€™ equity during the first six months
of 2024. A A 55 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Liquidity Liquidity is measured by our ability to raise funds through deposits, borrowed funds, and capital, or cash
flow from the repayment of loans and securities.A These funds are used to fund loans, meet deposit withdrawals, and operate our company.A Liquidity is primarily achieved through local and
out-of-area deposits and liquid assets such as securities available for sale, matured and called securities, federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits. Asset and liability management is the
process of managing our balance sheet to achieve a mix of earning assets and liabilities that maximizes profitability, while providing adequate liquidity. A To assist in providing needed funds
and managing interest rate risk, we periodically obtain monies from wholesale funding sources.A Wholesale funds, comprised of out-of-area deposits and FHLBI advances, totaled $580 million,
or about 12% of total funds, as of June 30, 2024, compared to $636 million, or about 14% of total funds, as of December 31, 2023. A Sweep accounts decreased $7.8 million during the first six
months of 2024, totaling $222 million as of June 30, 2024.A The aggregate balance of sweep accounts is subject to relatively large daily fluctuations given the nature of the customers utilizing
this product and the sizable balances that many of the customers maintain.A The average balance of sweep accounts equaled $221 million during the first six months of 2024, with a high
balance of $258 million and a low balance of $166 million.A Our sweep account program entails transferring collected funds from certain business noninterest-bearing checking accounts and
savings deposits into overnight interest-bearing repurchase agreements.A Such sweep accounts are not deposit accounts and are not afforded federal deposit insurance, and are accounted for
as secured borrowings. A All of our repurchase agreements are accounted for as secured borrowings. A A Information regarding our repurchase agreements as ofA June 30, 2024 and during
the first six months ofA 2024 is as follows: A (Dollars in thousands) A A A A Outstanding balance at June 30, 2024 A $ 221,898 A Weighted average interest rate at June 30, 2024 A A 343
% Maximum daily balance six months ended June 30, 2024 A $ 258,253 A Average daily balance for six months ended June 30, 2024 A $ 221,103 A Weighted average interest rate for six
months ended June 30, 2024 A A 3.09 % A FHLBI advances decreased $40.8 million during the first six months of 2024, totaling $427 million as of June 30, 2024.A Bullet advances
aggregating $10.0 million were obtained during the first six months of 2024, while bullet advance maturities aggregated $50.0 million.A Payments on amortizing FHLBI advances totaled $0.8
million.A Bullet FHLBI advances are generally obtained to provide funds for loan growth and are used to assist in managing interest rate risk, while amortizing FHLBI advances are generally
acquired to match-fund specific longer-term fixed rate commercial loans, with the dollar amount and amortization structure of the underlying advances reflective of the associated commercial
loans.A FHLBI advances are collateralized by residential mortgage loans, first mortgage liens on multi-family residential property loans, first mortgage liens on commercial real estate property
loans, and substantially all other assets of our bank, under a blanket lien arrangement.A Our borrowing line of credit as of June 30, 2024 totaled $1.01 billion, with remaining availability based
on collateral equaling $576 million. A We also have the ability to borrow up to an aggregate $70.0 million on a daily basis through correspondent banks using established unsecured federal
funds purchased lines of credit.A We did not access these lines of credit during the first six months of 2024.A In contrast, our interest-earning deposit balance with the Federal Reserve Bank of
Chicago averaged $154 million during the first six months of 2024.A We also have a line of credit through the Discount Window of the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago.A Using certain
municipal bonds as collateral, we could have borrowed up to $25.7 million as of June 30, 2024.A We did not utilize this line of credit during the first six months of 2024 or at any time during the
previous 15 fiscal years, and do not plan to access this line of credit in future periods. A A 56 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A The following table reflects, as of
June 30, 2024, significant fixed and determinable contractual obligations to third parties by payment date, excluding accrued interest: A A A OneYearA A OnetoA A Threeto A A Over A
A A A A (Dollars in thousands) A or Less A Three Years A A Five Years A A Five YearsA A TotalA AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Deposits without a stated
maturity A $ 3,277,184A A $0A A $0A A $0A A $3,277,184 A Time deposits A A 763,227 A A A 62,772A A A 43391A A A 0A A A 869,390 A Short-term borrowings A A
221,808A A A0OAAAOAAAOAAA221,898A Federal Home Loan Bank advances A A 90,862 A A A 181,838 A A A 132,000A A A 22,383 A A A 427,083 A Subordinated
debenturesA A 0OA A AOAAAO0OAAA 49987A A A 49,987 A Subordinated notesA A 0OA A A OA A A O0OA A A 89,143A A A 89,143 A Other borrowed moneyA A 0A A A 0
AAAOAAAT1216A A A 1,216 A Premises and equipment leases A A 936 A A A 2,155A A A 1,719A A A 1,455A A A 6,265 A A The balance of certificates of deposit exceeding
the FDIC insured limit and their maturity profile as ofA June 30, 2024A andA December 31, 2023A were as follows: A (Dollars in thousands) A June 30,2024 A A December 31,2023 A A A A
AAAAAA Up to three months A $ 91,187 A A $ 104,400 A Three months to six months A A 95,556 A A A 86,500 A Six months to twelve months A A 153,816 A A A 133,800 A Over
twelve months A A 73,445A A A 104,200A A A A A A A A A A Total certificates of deposit A $ 414,004 A A $ 428,900 A A In addition to normal loan funding and deposit flow, we
must maintain liquidity to meet the demands of certain unfunded loan commitments and standby letters of Credit.A As of June 30, 2024, we had a total of $2.04 billion in unfunded loan
commitments and $19.9 million in unfunded standby letters of credit.A Of the total unfunded loan commitments, $1.78 billion were commitments available as lines of credit to be drawn at any
time as customersa€™ cash needs vary, and $255 million were for loan commitments generally expected to close and become funded within the next 12 to 18 months.A We regularly monitor
fluctuations in loan balances and commitment levels, and include such data in our overall liquidity management. A We monitor our liquidity position and funding strategies on an ongoing basis,
but recognize that unexpected events, changes in economic or market conditions, a reduction in earnings performance, declining capital levels or situations beyond our control could cause
liquidity challenges.A We have developed contingency funding plans that provide a framework for meeting liquidity disruptions. A Capital Resources Shareholdersa€™ equity increased $29.0
million during the first six months of 2024, equaling $551 million at June 30, 2024.A Positively impacting shareholdersa€™ equity during the first six months of 2024 was net income of $40.3
million, which was partially offset by the payment of cash dividends totaling $11.1 million.A Activity relating to the issuance and sale of common stock through various stock-based
compensation programs and our dividend reinvestment plan positively impacted shareholdersa€™ equity by $2.5 million.A A $2.8 million after-tax decrease in the market value of our available
for sale securities portfolio, reflecting an increase in market interest rates, negatively impacted shareholdersa€™ equity during the first six months of 2024. A We and our bank are subject to
regulatory capital requirements administered by state and federal banking agencies.A Failure to meet the various capital requirements can initiate regulatory action that could have a direct
material effect on the financial statements.A As of June 30, 2024, our banka€™s total risk-based capital ratio was 13.9%, compared to 13.4% at December 31, 2023.A Our banka€™s total
regulatory capital increased $36.2 million during the first six months of 2024, in large part reflecting net income totaling $45.9 million, which was partially offset by cash dividends paid to us
aggregating $14.6 million.A Our banka€™s total risk-based capital ratio was also impacted by a $94.7 million increase in total risk-weighted assets.A As of June 30, 2024, our banka€™s total
regulatory capital equaled $731 million, or $204 million in excess of the 10.0% minimum that is among the requirements to be categorized as 4€cewell capitalized.4€A Our and our banka€™s
capital ratios as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are disclosed in Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. A A 57 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK
CORPORATION A A Results of Operations We recorded net income of $18.8 million, or $1.17 per basic and diluted share, for the second quarter of 2024, compared with net income of $20.4
million, or $1.27 per basic and diluted share, for the second quarter of 2023.A We recorded net income of $40.3 million, or $2.50 per basic and diluted share, for the first six months of 2024,
compared with net income of $41.3 million, or $2.58 per basic and diluted share, for the first six months of 2023.A Diluted earnings per share decreased $0.10, or 7.9%, during the second
quarter of 2024, and $0.08, or 3.1%, during the first six months of 2024, compared with the respective prior-year periods. A The lower levels of net income during the second quarter and first
six months of 2024 compared to the respective 2023 periods primarily resulted from higher overhead costs and provisions for credit losses and decreased net interest income, which more than
offset notable increases in noninterest income.A The increase in noninterest expense during the 2024 periods mainly resulted from larger salary and data processing costs; increased
contributions to the Foundation also contributed to the higher level of overhead costs during the first six months of 2024.A The provision expense recorded during the 2024 periods primarily
reflected individual allocations assigned to two different nonperforming nonreal-estate-related commercial loan relationships, with one each being recorded in the first quarter and second
quarter, and allocations necessitated by net loan growth.A Net interest income declined during the 2024 periods as higher yields on, along with growth in, earning assets were more than offset
by an increased cost of funds.A The growth in noninterest income during the 2024 periods mainly resulted from increased mortgage banking income and service charges on accounts; higher
levels of payroll service fees, interest rate swap income, and gains on the sales of other real estate owned also contributed to the increased noninterest income during the periods.A Revenue
associated with a private equity investment and benefit claims on bank owned life insurance policies positively impacted noninterest income during the first six months of 2024. A Interest
income during the second quarter of 2024 was $78.9 million, an increase of $13.0 million, or 19.7%, from the $65.9 million earned during the second quarter of 2023.A The increase resulted
from growth in, and a higher yield on, average earning assets.A Average earning assets equaled $5.22 billion during the second quarter of 2024, up $502 million, or 10.7%, from the level of
$4.72 billion during the second quarter of 2023; average loans were up $379 million, average interest-earning deposits grew $118 million, and average securities increased $6.0 million.A The
yield on average earning assets was 6.07% during the second quarter of 2024, up from 5.61% during the respective 2023 period.A The higher yield primarily resulted from an increased yield on
loans.A The yield on loans was 6.64% during the second quarter of 2024, up from 6.19% during the second quarter of 2023 mainly due to higher interest rates on variable-rate commercial loans
resulting from the FOMC raising the targeted federal funds rate in an effort to reduce elevated inflation levels.A The FOMC increased the targeted federal funds rate by 75 basis points during
the period of March 2023 through July 2023, during which time average variable-rate commercial loans represented approximately 68% of average total commercial loans.A Increased yields on
securities and interest-earning deposits, reflecting the rising interest rate environment, along with a change in earning asset mix, comprised of a decrease in lower-yielding securities as a
percentage of earning assets, also contributed to the higher yield on average earning assets. A Interest income during the first six months of 2024 was $156 million, an increase of $29.2
million, or 23.1%, from the $126 million earned during the first six months of 2023.A The increase primarily resulted from growth in, and a higher yield on, average earning assets.A Average
earning assets equaled $5.15 billion during the first six months of 2024, up $499 million, or 10.7%, from the level of $4.65 billion during the first six months of 2023; average loans increased
$375 million, average interest-earning deposits were up $118 million, and average securities grew $6.2 million.A The yield on average earning assets was 6.06% during the first six months of
2024, up from 5.48% during the respective 2023 period.A The higher yield mainly resulted from an increased yield on loans.A The yield on loans was 6.65% during the first six months of 2024,
up from 6.05% during the first six months of 2023 primarily due to higher interest rates on variable-rate commercial loans stemming from FOMC rate hikes.A The FOMC increased the targeted
federal funds rate by 100 basis points during the period of February 2023 through July 2023, during which time average variable-rate commercial loans represented approximately 65% of
average total commercial loans.A Higher yields on securities and interest-earning deposits, reflecting the rising interest rate environment, along with a change in earning asset mix, consisting
of a decline in lower-yielding securities as a percentage of earning assets, also contributed to the increased yield on average earning assets. A A 58 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK
CORPORATION A A Interest expense during the second quarter of 2024 was $31.8 million, an increase of $13.4 million, or 73.2%, from the $18.4 million expensed during the second quarter of
2023.A The increase is mainly attributable to a higher average weighted cost of interest-bearing liabilities, which rose from 2.37% during the second quarter of 2023 to 3.40% during the
current-year second quarter primarily due to higher rates on deposits and borrowings.A A change in funding mix, mainly consisting of a decrease in noninterest-bearing and lower-cost deposits
and an increase in higher-cost money market accounts and time deposits stemming from deposit migration and new deposit relationships, also contributed to the increased cost of funds.A
Reflecting the rising interest rate environment, the cost of interest-bearing, non-time deposits increased from 1.85% during the second quarter of 2023 to 2.79% during the second quarter of
2024, while the cost of time deposits increased from 3.27% to 4.73% during the respective periods.A The higher cost of interest-bearing, non-time deposits primarily resulted from increased
rates paid on money market and interest-bearing business checking accounts.A A A The cost of borrowed funds increased from 2.90% during the second quarter of 2023 to 3.56% during the
second quarter of 2024 mainly due to higher costs of sweep accounts and FHLBI advances.A The cost of sweep accounts increased from 1.45% during the second quarter of 2023 to 3.12%
during the second quarter of 2024, while the cost of FHLBI advances increased from 2.68% to 2.96% during the respective periods, reflecting the rising interest rate environment.A Growth in
interest-bearing liabilities also contributed to the increase in interest expense during the second quarter of 2024 compared to the prior-year second quarter.A Average interest-bearing
liabilities totaled $3.76 billion during the second quarter of 2024, compared to $3.11 billion during the second quarter of 2023, representing an increase of $652 million, or 21.0%. A Interest
expense during the first six months of 2024 was $61.2 million, an increase of $30.7 million, or 101%, from the $30.5 million expensed during the first six months of 2023.A The increase
primarily stemmed from a higher average weighted cost of interest-bearing liabilities, which rose from 2.06% during the first six months of 2023 to 3.33% during the respective 2024 period
mainly due to higher rates on deposits and borrowings.A A change in funding mix, mainly comprising of a decline in noninterest-bearing and lower-cost deposits and an increase in higher-cost
money market accounts and time deposits stemming from deposit migration and new deposit relationships, also contributed to the increased cost of funds.A Reflecting the rising interest rate
environment, the cost of interest-bearing, non-time deposits increased from 1.56% during the first six months of 2023 to 2.70% during the first six months of 2024, while the cost of time
deposits increased from 2.84% to 4.67% during the respective periods.A The higher cost of interest-bearing, non-time deposits primarily resulted from increased rates paid on money market
and interest-bearing business checking accounts.A The cost of borrowed funds increased from 2.73% during the first six months of 2023 to 3.53% during the first six months of 2024 mainly due
to higher costs of sweep accounts and FHLBI advances.A The cost of sweep accounts increased from 1.17% during the first six months of 2023 to 3.09% during the first six months of 2024,
while the cost of FHLBI advances increased from 2.44% to 2.94% during the respective periods, reflecting the rising interest rate environment.A Growth in interest-bearing liabilities also
contributed to the increase in interest expense during the first six months of 2024 compared to the respective 2023 period.A Average interest-bearing liabilities totaled $3.68 billion during the
first six months of 2024, compared to $2.98 billion during the first six months of 2023, representing an increase of $698 million, or 23.4%. A Net interest income during the second quarter of
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2024 was $47.1 million, a decrease of $0.5 million, or 1.0%, from the $47.6 million earned during the respective 2023 period.A The decline reflected a lower net interest margin, which more
than offset growth in earning assets.A The net interest margin was 3.63% in the second quarter of 2024, down from 4.05% in the prior-year second quarter due to a higher cost of funds, which
more than offset an increased yield on earning assets.A The cost of funds equaled 2.44% in the second quarter of 2024, up from 1.56% in the second quarter of 2023 primarily due to higher
costs of deposits and borrowed funds, reflecting the impact of the rising interest rate environment.A The increased yield on average earning assets mainly resulted from a higher yield on
commercial loans primarily stemming from the previously mentioned FOMC rate hikes. A Net interest income during the first six months of 2024 was $94.4 million, a decline of $1.5 million, or
1.6%, from the $95.9 million earned during the respective 2023 period.A The decrease reflected a lower net interest margin, which more than offset growth in earning assets.A The net interest
margin was 3.68% in the first six months of 2024, down from 4.16% in the first six months of 2023 due to an increased cost of funds, which more than offset a higher yield on earning assets.A
The cost of funds equaled 2.38% in the first six months of 2024, up from 1.32% in the respective prior-year period mainly due to higher costs of deposits and borrowed funds, reflecting the
impact of the rising interest rate environment.A The increased yield on average earning assets mainly resulted from a higher yield on commercial loans primarily stemming from the
aforementioned FOMC rate increases. A The following tables set forth certain information relating to our consolidated average interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and reflect
the average yield on assets and average cost of liabilities for the second quarters and first six months of 2024 and 2023.A Such yields and costs are derived by dividing income or expense by
the average daily balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the period presented.A Tax-exempt securities interest income and yield for the second quarters and first six months of 2024
and 2023 have been computed on a tax equivalent basis using a marginal tax rate of 21.0%.A Securities interest income was increased by $60,000 in the second quarter of both 2024 and 2023
and $120,000 in the first six months of both 2024 and 2023 for this non-GAAP, but industry standard, adjustment.A These adjustments equated to increases in our net interest margin of less
than one basis point for each of the 2024 and 2023 periods. A A 59 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A A A Quarters ended ]une 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A A
Average A A A AAA Average A A Average AA Average A A A Balance A A Interest A A Rate A A Balance A A Interest A A Rate A A (dollars in thousands) A ASSETS
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA ans A $4,396,475A A $72,819A A A 6.64 %A $4,017,690A A $62,006A A A 6.199
640,627 A A A 3,684 A A A 2.30A A A 634,607 2.00 A Interest-earning deposits A A 182,636 A A A 2,436 A A
Total interest - earning assets A A 5, 6.07A A A 4,717,255A A A 65978A A A 561AAAAA
Allowance for credit losses A A (53,1 (44,025)A A AAA A A A Otherassets A A 366,687 A A A
$5 262A AAAAAAAAAS$4988474A A
A LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS&€™ EQUI
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interest income A A A A A $94554A A AAAA 96,055A A AAAAA et interest rate spread A A A A A
AAAAA273%AAAAAAAAAAS3 et interest spread on average assets A A A A 3.93 % Net interest margin on earning
assetsA AAAAAAAAA368%AAAAAAAAAAA416%A A 61 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Provisions for credit losses of $3.5 million and
$2.0 million were recorded during the second quarters of 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $4.8 million and $2.6 million during the first six months of 2024 and 2023, respectively.A The
provision expense recorded during the second quarter of 2024 primarily reflected an individual allocation for a nonperforming nonreal-estate-related commercial loan relationship and
allocations necessitated by net loan growth, while the provision expense recorded during the first six months of 2024 mainly reflected the aforementioned individual allocation, an individual
allocation for a different nonperforming nonreal-estate-related commercial loan relationship during the first quarter, and allocations required by net loan growth.A The provision expense
recorded during the 2023 periods primarily reflected allocations necessitated by net loan growth and adjustments to historical loss factors to better represent our expectations for future credit
losses.A Ongoing strong loan quality metrics, including low levels of loan charge-offs, during the 2024 and 2023 periods largely mitigated additional reserves associated with the previously
mentioned factors. A Noninterest income totaled $9.7 million during the second quarter of 2024, up $2.0 million, or 26.6%, from the $7.7 million recorded during the second quarter of 2023.A
The growth primarily resulted from increases in mortgage banking income and service charges on accounts, with the latter mainly stemming from enhanced use of cash management
products.A The higher level of mortgage banking income primarily resulted from an increased percentage of loans originated with the intent to sell, which rose from approximately 43% during
the second quarter of 2023 to approximately 75% during the second quarter of 2024. A Increases in payroll service fees, bank owned life insurance income, and interest rate swap income also
contributed to the higher level of noninterest income.A Noninterest income during the current-year second quarter included $0.3 million in _gains on the sales of other real estate owned. A
Noninterest income totaled $20.5 million during the first six months of 2024, compared to $14.6 million during the first six months of 2023.A Noninterest income during the first six months of
2024 included bank owned life insurance death benefit claims and gains on the sales of other real estate owned totaling $0.7 million and $0.4 million, respectively.A Excluding these
transactions, noninterest income increased $4.8A million, or 33.1%, in the first six months of 2024 compared to the respective 2023 period.A The growth primarily stemmed from higher levels
of mortgage banking income, mainly reflecting an increased percentage of residential mortgage loans originated with the intent to sell, and service charges on accounts, in large part reflecting
expanded use of cash management products.A The percentage of residential mortgage loans originated with the intent to sell increased from approximately 40% during the first six months of
2023 to approximately 74% during the first six months of 2024.A Increases in interest rate swap income and payroll service fees, along with revenue associated with a private equity
investment, also contributed to the growth in noninterest income. A Noninterest expense totaled $29.7 million during the second quarter of 2024, compared to $27.8 million during the prior-
year second quarter.A Noninterest expense totaled $59.7 million during the first six months of 2024, compared to $56.4 million during the first six months of 2023.A The increases during the
2024 periods primarily resulted from larger salary costs, reflecting annual merit pay increases, market adjustments, higher residential mortgage lender commissions and incentives, and lower
residential mortgage loan deferred salary costs.A Higher levels of data processing costs, mainly reflecting increased transaction volume and software support costs, and health insurance claims
also contributed to the rises in noninterest expense.A Reduced credit reserves for unfunded loan commitments during both 2024 periods compared to the respective 2023 periods partially
offset the increases in these cost categories.A Overhead costs during the first six months of 2024 included contributions to the Foundation totaling $0.7 million, while overhead costs during the
respective 2023 period included a $0.4 million write-down of a former branch facility in the first quarter. A During the second quarter of 2024, we recorded income before federal income tax of
$23.5 million and a federal income tax expense of $4.7 million.A During the second quarter of 2023, we recorded income before federal income tax of $25.4 million and a federal income tax
expense of $5.0 million.A During the first six months of 2024, we recorded income before federal income tax of $50.5 million and a federal income tax expense of $10.2 million.A During the
first six months of 2023, we recorded income before federal income tax of $51.5 million and a federal income tax expense of $10.2 million. The decrease in federal income tax expense in the
second quarter of 2024 compared to the prior-year second quarter primarily resulted from a lower level of income before federal income tax.A Although income before federal income tax
expense was $1.0 million lower in the first six months of 2024 compared to respective 2023 period, federal income tax expense was similar during the periods mainly due to our election to apply
the proportional amortization method to our tax credit equity investments during the fourth quarter of 2023, which resulted in $0.2 million in tax expense being recorded during the year-to-date
2024 period.A Amortization costs related to tax credit equity investments were included in noninterest expense in the first six months of 2023.A Our effective tax rate was 20.1% during the
second quarter and first six months of 2024, compared to 19.8% during the respective 2023 periods.A The tax credit equity investments-related tax election negatively impacted the effective
tax rate in the 2024 periods, while the previously mentioned bank owned life insurance death benefit claims, substantially all of which were nontaxable, positively impacted the effective tax rate
in the first six months of 2024. A A 62 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk A Our primary market
risk exposure is interest rate risk and, to a lesser extent, liquidity risk. All of our transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars with no specific foreign exchange exposure. We have only limited
agricultural-related loan assets and therefore have no significant exposure to changes in commodity prices. Any impact that changes in foreign exchange rates and commodity prices would have
on interest rates is assumed to be insignificant. Interest rate risk is the exposure of our financial condition to adverse movements in interest rates. We derive our income primarily from the
excess of interest collected on our interest-earning assets over the interest paid on our interest-bearing liabilities. The rates of interest we earn on our assets and owe on our liabilities generally
are established contractually for a period of time. Since market interest rates change over time, we are exposed to lower profitability if we cannot adapt to interest rate changes. Accepting
interest rate risk can be an important source of profitability and shareholder value; however, excessive levels of interest rate risk could pose a significant threat to our earnings and capital base.
Accordingly, effective risk management that maintains interest rate risk at prudent levels is essential to our safety and soundness. A Evaluating the exposure to changes in interest rates
includes assessing both the adequacy of the process used to control interest rate risk and the quantitative level of exposure. Our interest rate risk management process seeks to ensure that
appropriate policies, procedures, management information systems and internal control procedures are in place to maintain interest rate risk at prudent levels with consistency and continuity.
In evaluating the quantitative level of interest rate risk, we assess the existing and potential future effects of changes in interest rates on our financial condition, including capital adequacy,
earnings, liquidity and asset quality. A We use two interest rate risk measurement techniques. The first, which is commonly referred to as GAP analysis, measures the difference between the
dollar amounts of interest sensitive assets and liabilities that will be refinanced or repriced during a given time period. A significant repricing gap could result in a negative impact to our net
interest margm during periods of changing market interest rates A A 63 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A The following table depicts our GAP position as of June
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30, 2024: A A A Within A A ThreetoA A OnetoA A AfterA A A A A A A ThreeA A Twelve A A Five A A Five A A A A A (Dollars in thousands)A Months A A Months A A Years
A A YearsA A Total A Assets: A A AAAAAAAAA A AAAAAAAATLoans(1)A $2,561,384A A $155566A A $1,117,707 A A $ 603,588 A A $ 4,438,245 A Securities
available for sale (2) A A 33,924 A A A 48,052 A A A 267,205A A A 320,239A A A 669,420 A Interest-earning deposits A A 131,012A A A 1,004 A A A 3,750A A A0AAA
135,766 A Mortgage loans held for sale A A 22,126 A A A 0A A A0OAAAO0A A A 22,126 A Allowance for credit losses A A 0AA A 0A A AOAAAOAAA (55,408 ) Other
assetsA A OAAAOAAAOAAAOAA A 392239A Total assets A A 2,748,446 A A A 204,622 A A A 1,388,662 A A A 923,827A A $5602,388AAAAAAAAAAAA
AAAAAAAAAA Liabilites: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A Interest-bearing deposits A A 2,359,740 A A A 560,782 A A A 106,164A A A 0A A A
3,026,686 A Short-term borrowings A A 221,898A A A 0A A A 0A A A 0A A A 221,898 A Federal Home Loan Bank advances A A 10,000 A A A 80,862 A A A 313,838A A A
22,383 A A A 427,083 A Other borrowed money A A 51,203A A A 0A A A 89,143A A A 0A A A 140,346 A NomnterestbearmgcheckmgA AOAAAOAAAOAAAO0OAAA
1,119,888 A Other liabilitiesA A 0A A A OA A A OAAA OA A A 115,336 A Total liabilities A A 2,642,841 A A A 641,644 A A A 509,145A A A 22,383 A A A 5,051,237 A
Shareholders' equity A A 0A A A 0OAAAO0OAAAO0AA A 551,151 A Total liabilities & shareholders' equity A A 2,642,841 A A A 641,644 A A A 509,145A A A 22,383A A §
5,602,388 A Net asset (liability) GAP A $ 105,605 A A $(437,022)A $879,517A A $901,444A A A A A Cumulative GAPA $ 105,605A A $(331,417)A $548,100 A A $ 1,449,544 A

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A Percent of cumulative GAP to total assets A A 1.9 % A A (5.9)%A A 98%A A 259%A A A A A (1) Floating rate loans
that are currently at interest rate floors are treated as fixed rate loans and are reflected using maturity date and not repricing frequency. (2) Mortgage-backed securities are categorized by
expected maturities based upon prepayment trends as of June 30, 2024.A A A 64 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A The second interest rate risk measurement we
use is commonly referred to as net interest income simulation analysis. We believe that this methodology provides a more accurate measurement of interest rate risk than the GAP analysis, and
therefore, it serves as our primary interest rate risk measurement technique. The simulation model assesses the direction and magnitude of variations in net interest income resulting from
potential changes in market interest rates. A Key assumptions in the model include prepayment speeds on various loan and investment assets; cash flows and maturities of interest sensitive
assets and liabilities; and changes in market conditions impacting loan and deposit volume and pricing. These assumptions are inherently uncertain, subject to fluctuation and revision in a
dynamic environment; therefore, the model cannot precisely estimate net interest income or exactly predict the impact of higher or lower interest rates on net interest income. Actual results
will differ from simulated results due to timing, magnitude, and frequency of interest rate changes and changes in market conditions and our strategies, among other factors. A We conducted
multiple simulations as of June 30, 2024, in which it was assumed that changes in market interest rates occurred ranging from up 300 basis points to down 300 basis points in equal quarterly
instalments over the next twelve months. The following table reflects the suggested dollar and percentage changes in net interest income over the next twelve months in comparison to the
$205A million in net interest income projected using our balance sheet amounts and anticipated replacement rates as of June 30, 2024. The resulting estimates are generally within our policy
parameters established to manage and monitor interest rate risk. A (Dollars in thousands) A Dollar Change A A Percent Change A A A InNetA A In Net A Interest Rate Scenario A
Interest Income A A Interest Income A A A A A A A A A A Interest rates down 300 basis points A $(17,300) A A (8.5)% Interest rates down 200 basis points A A (11,700)A A (5.7)



Interest rates down 100 basis points A A (5,400 ) A A (2.6 ) Interest rates up 100 basis points A A 5,200 A A A 2.5 A Interest rates up 200 basis points A A 10,800 A A A 5.3 A Interest
rates up 300 basis points A A 15,900 A A A 7.8 A A The resulting estimates have been significantly impacted by the current interest rate and economic environments, as adjustments have
been made to critical model inputs with regards to traditional interest rate relationships. This is especially important as it relates to floating rate commercial loans, which comprise a sizable
portion of our balance sheet. A In addition to changes in interest rates, the level of future net interest income is also dependent on a number of other variables, including: the growth,
composition and absolute levels of loans, deposits, and other earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities; level of nonperforming assets; economic and competitive conditions; potential
changes in lending, investing, and deposit gathering strategies; client preferences; and other factors. A Item 4. Controls and Procedures A As of June 30, 2024, an evaluation was performed
under the supervision of and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of June 30, 2024. A There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended June 30, 2024 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. A A 65 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A PART II 4€“ OTHER
INFORMATION A Item 1. Legal Proceedings. From time to time, we may be involved in various legal proceedings that are incidental to our business. In our opinion, we are not a party to any
current legal proceedings that are material to our financial condition, either individually or in the aggregate. A Item 1A. Risk Factors. There have been no material changes in our risk factors
from those previously disclosed in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. A Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds. We made no
unregistered sales of equity securities during the quarter ended June 30, 2024. A Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities A On May 27, 2021, we announced that our Board of Directors had
authorized a program to repurchase up to $20.0 million of our common stock from time to time in open market transactions at prevailing market prices or by other means in accordance with
applicable regulations. The actual timing, number and value of shares repurchased under the program will be determined by management in its discretion and will depend on a number of
factors, including the market price of our stock, general market and economic conditions, our capital position, financial performance and alternative uses of capital, and applicable legal
requirements. The program may be discontinued at any time. No shares were repurchased during the first six months ofA 2024. Historically, stock repurchases have been funded from cash
dividends paid to us from our bank. Additional repurchases may be made in future periods under the authorized plan or a new plan, which would also likely be funded from cash dividends paid
to us from our bank. As of June 30, 2024, repurchases aggregating $6.8 million were available to be made under the current repurchase program. A Repurchases made during theA second
quarterofA2024aredetalledmthetablebelow AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Maximum NumberA AAAAAAAAAAAAAA ofSharesorAAAAAAAAAAAA
A A A Approximate Dollar AAAAAAAAA A A Total Number of A A Value that May Yet A A A TotalA A A A A A Shares Purchasedas A A Be A A A Number of A A Average
A A Part of Publicly A A Purchased Under the A A A Shares A A Price Paid Per A A Announced Plans or A A Plans or - Programs A Period A Purchased A A Share A A Programs A A
(Dollars in thousands) A April 1 4€“30A A 0A A $0A AAOAA $6818A May14a€“31A AOAAAO0OAAAOAAAG®G68I8A June1a€“30AA0AAAO0AAAOAAA
6,818 A TotalA A OA A $0A A A OA A $6,818 A A Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities. Not applicable. A Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures. Not applicable. A Item 5. Other
Information. Director Robert B. Kaminski, Jr. entered into a 10b5-1 Plan on April 2, 2024. The plan is intended to satisfy the affirmative defenses of Rule 10b5-1(c). The plan permits the sale of
up to 4,500 shares beginning on July 2, 2024 through December 31, 2025. A A 66 Table of Contents MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATION A A A Item 6. Exhibits A EXHIBIT NO. EXHIBIT
DESCRIPTION A A 3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Mercantile Bank Corporation, including all amendments thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our Form S-4 Registration
Statement filed February 16, 2022 A A 3.2 Our Amended and Restated Bylaws dated as of February 26, 2015 are incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
filed February 26, 2015 A A 4.1 Instruments defining the Rights of Security Holders 4€“ reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2. In accordance with Regulation S-K Item 601 (b)(4),
Mercantile Bank Corporation is not filing copies of instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt because none of those instruments authorizes debt in excess of 10% of the total
assets of Mercantile Bank Corporation and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Mercantile Bank Corporation hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the Securities and
Exchange Commission upon request. A A 4.2 Subordinated indenture, dated December 15, 2021, by and between Mercantile Bank Corporation and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as
trustee, incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2021 A A 4.3 First Supplemental Indenture to Subordinated indenture, dated December 15, 2021, by
and between Mercantile Bank Corporation and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee, incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2021 A A
4.4 Form of 3.25% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Subordinated Note due 2032, incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2021 A A 4.5 Form of Subordinated
Note Purchase Agreement dated December 15, 2021, by and among Mercantile Bank Corporation and the Purchasers, incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
December 17, 2021 A A 4.6 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated December 15, 2021, by and among Mercantile Bank Corporation and the Purchasers, incorporated by reference to
our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2021 A’ A 10.1 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement of Raymond E. Reitsma dated November 29, 2018, effective December 31,
2018, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 of our Form 8-K filed December 3, 2018 A A 10.2 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement of Raymond E. Reitsma
dated May 31, 2024, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 of our Form 8-K filed June 3, 2024 A A 10.3 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement of Scott P. Setlock effective January
1, 2024A incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 of our Form 8-K filed June 3, 2024 A A 10.4 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement of Scott P. Setlock dated
May 31, 2024A incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.4 of our Form 8-K filed June 3, 2024 A A 31 Rule 13a-14(a) Certifications A A 32.1 Section 1350 Chief Executive Officer Certification A
A 32.2 Section 1350 Chief Financial Officer Certification A A 101 The following financial information from Mercantiled€™s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2024, formatted in Inline XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Income, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehenswe Income, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholdersa€™A Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements A A 104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101) A A A 67 Table of Contents A SIGNATURES A Pursuant to the requlrements of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on August 2, 2024. AAA
MERCANTILE BANK CORPORATIONA A A A A A A By: /s/ Raymond E. ReitsmaA A Raymond E. Reitsma A President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) AAAAA
A A By: /s/ Charles E. Christmas A Charles E. Christmas A Executive Vice President, Chief FmanClal Offlcer and Treasurer (Pnnc:lpal F1nanc1al and Accountmg Offlcer) A A 68 0001437749-
that A1AAAAAAAAAI have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Mercantile Bank Corporatlon (the "registrant");A 2.A AA A A A A A A Based on my knowledge, this report does not
contam any untrue statement of a mater1a1 fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made in hght of the mrcumstances under Wthh such statements were made,

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the reglstrant as of, and for, the perlods presented in this report; A4 AAAAAAAAA The
registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:A a)A A A A A A A A A Designed such disclosure controls and
procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;A b)A A A A A A A A A Designed such internal control over
financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;A c)A A A A A A A A A Evaluated the effectiveness of the
registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; andA d)A A A A A A A A A Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant&€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially

affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; andA 5.A A A A A A A A A The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of mternal control over financial reportmg to the reglstrant s audltors and the audit commlttee of the reglstrant s board of directors (or persons performlng the equivalent

adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; andA b)A A A A A A A A A Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management
or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's lnternal control over ﬁnanc1al reporting. A Date: A August 2, 2024 /s/ Raymond E. Reitsma AAA Raymond E. Reitsma AAA

that:A 1.AAAAAAAAAThave reviewed this report on Form 10 Q of Mercantlle Bank Corporation (the ‘registrant”);A 2.A AA A A A A A A Based on my knowledge, this report does not
contam any untrue statement of a materlal fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made in hght of the mrcumstances under Wthh such statements were made,

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the reglstrant as of, and for, the perlods presented in this report;A4AAAAAAAAA The
registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:A a)A A A A A A A A A Designed such disclosure controls and
procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;A b)A AA A A A A A A Designed such internal control over
financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;A c)A A A A A A A A A Evaluated the effectiveness of the
registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; andA d)A AA A A A A A A Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially

affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; andA 5.A A A A A A A A A The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of 1nternal control over financial reportlng, to the reglstrant s audltors and the audit commlttee of the reglstrant s board of directors (or persons performmg the equivalent

or other employees who have a 51gn1f1cant role 1n the reglstrant s internal control over financial reportlng A Date:A August 2, 2024 /s/ Charles E. Christmas A A A Charles E. Christmas A A
A Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer A A A A 0001437749-24-024367ex_684156.htm EXHIBIT 32.1A CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,AS
ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A This certification is provided pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- -Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. A§ 1350,
and accompanies the quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter end_edA June 30, 2024 (the "Form 10-Q") of Mercantile Bank Corporation (the "Issuer").A I, Raymond E. Reitsma, President

Issuer.A Dated: August 2,2024A A A /s/ Raymond E. Reitsma A A Raymond E. Reitsma A A President and Chief Executive Offlcer A A A 0001437749-24-024367ex 684157.htm EXHIBIT
32.2A CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A This certification is provided pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. A§ 1350 and accompanles the quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedA June 30, 2024 (the "Form 10-Q") of Mercantile

the Form 10-Q fully complies w1th the requlrements of Sectlon 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; andA (n)A AAAAAAAA the 1nformat10n contained in the Form
10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Issuer. A Dated: August 2, 2024A A A /s/ Charles E. Christmas A A Charles E. Christmas A
A Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer A A A



